Public Document Pack

Licensing Committee

Tuesday, 24th January, 2023
6.00 pm
Conference Room 1, Blackburn Town Hall

AGENDA
1. Welcome & Apologies
2. Minutes of Previous Meeting
Full Licensing 22 November 22 2-3
3. Declaration of Interest
4. Outcome of Consultation on Policy Revision
Outcome of Consultation on Policy Revision 4 -85
Appendix 1
Appendix 2
Appendix 3
Appendix 4
Appendix 5
Appendix 6
5. Update on the work of the Public Protection Service
Update on the work of the Public Protection Service 86 - 88

PART 2 - THE PRESS AND PUBLIC MAY BE EXCLUDED
DURING CONSIDERATION OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS

6. Minutes of Licensing Sub Committees

GLSC -15 Nov 89 -92
GLSC Minutes - 13th December 2022

Date Published: Monday, 16 January 2023
Denise Park, Chief Executive



PURliGReCBIRRRack Agenda Item 2

Tuesday, 22 November 2022
PRESENT - Councillors, Councillor Iftakhar Hussain (Chair), Imtiaz, Casey,
Taylor, Fazal, Hardman, Raja and Patel.

OFFICERS - Julie Fisher (Legal/Solicitor), Denise Andrews (Business
Compliance and Licensing Manager) and Tayyab Mulla (Governance Officer)

RESOLUTIONS

6 Welcome & Apologies

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting
Apologies were received from Councillors S Brookfield, J Floyd and D Gee.

7 Minutes of the Previous Meeting

RESOLVED - The Minutes of the previous meeting held on Tuesday 18
October 2022 were approved as a correct record

8 Declaration of Interest

The Chair asked all members if they needed to declare any interest. Following
advise the Legal Representation Councillour Altaf Patel declared an intrest in
Agenda Item Number 9 and did not partake in any discussions on the report.

9 Application for an increase in hackney carriage fares

Denise Andrews presented a report to Members for an increase in Hackney
Carriage Fares. The purpose of the report was for Members to consider a
request from the hackney carriage trade for an increase in hackney carriage
fares. The report provided a table which informed Members of the proposed
fares in comparison to the existing fares.

The application for increase in hackney carriage fares was a policy matter that
needed to be considered by the Executive Member.

The Licensing Committee needed to consider the fare increase, and if
supported would need to recommend the request being advertised.

Members were advised that increases in fares were only triggered by requests
made from the trade. The last increase was in 2019 and the trade had borne
the increases in fuel prices and overheads during this period.

Currently Blackburn with Darwen fares ranked 243 out of 345 listed
authorities. The fare for a 2 mile journey on Tariff 1 was currently £6.30.

Where authorities had changed fares in 2022, for a 2 mile journey on Tariff 1
the fares ranged from £4.90 to £13.20. The proposal for Blackburn with
Darwen is £6.77 for the 2 mile journey, which would be 7.5% increase.

Licensing Committee
Tuesday, 22nd November, 2022 Page 2



The proposal was to also remove the increase of fare to Tariff 2 for Sundays
and Bank Holidays (with the exception of Christmas and New year).

Members were advised that there are no financial implications for the Council
apart from the fee for the advert. Users of hackney carriages would incur an
increase in the cost of each journey undertaken.

RESOLVED - That the report to be agreed and recommended to the
Executive Member.

10 Minutes of the Licensing Sub-Commmittees

The Committee received the proceedings of the following Sub Committees:

General Licensing Sub Committee held on 11" October 2022
Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee held on 25" October 2022

RESOLVED - That the proceedings of the Sub Committees as outlined above
were approved as a correct record and were duly signed by the Chair.

Signed: ...,

Date: oo
Chair of the meeting
at which the minutes were confirmed

Licensing Committee
Tuesday, 22nd November, 2022 Page 3



Agenda Item 4

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND OPERATIONS

ORIGINATING SECTION: Public Protection Unit
REPORT TO: Licensing Committee — 24 January 2023
TITLE: Revised Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy consultation
responses

1. PURPOSE

2.2

3.2

The purpose of this report is to present the outcome of the recent consultation
with the trade and other stakeholders on the proposed Hackney Carriage and
Private Hire Licensing revised policy, for members to consider.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That members reconsider the contents of the draft policy in light of the
consultation responses and decide if they wish to amend the draft policy
(Appendix 1).

That members recommend the final revised policy be presented to the next
available Council Forum for adoption

KEY ISSUES

The Department for Transport published its Statutory Standards for Private Hire
and Hackney Carriage Vehicles in the summer of 2020. The Government
emphasised its expectations throughout the document in bold.

The following paragraphs are particularly relevant.

1.3 “Whilst the focus of the Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards is
on protecting children and vulnerable adults, all passengers will benefit from
the recommendations contained in it. There is consensus that common core
minimum standards are required to regulate better the taxi and private hire
vehicle sector, and the recommendations in this document are the result of
detailed discussion with the trade, regulators and safety campaign groups. The
Department therefore expects these recommendations to be implemented
unless there is a compelling local reason not to.”

2.6 The document sets out a framework of policies that, under section 177(4),
of the Policing and Crime Act 2017, licensing authorities “must have regard”
to when exercising their functions. These functions include developing,
implementing and reviewing their taxi and private hire vehicle licensing
regimes. “Having regard” is more than having a cursory glance at a document
before arriving at a preconceived conclusion.

2.7 “Having regard” to these standards requires public authorities, in
formulating a policy, to give considerations the weight which is proportionate in
the circumstances. Given that the standards have been set directly to
address the safeguarding of the public and the potential impact of

Page 4


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards

3.3

3.4

failings in this area, the importance of thoroughly considering these
standards cannot be overstated. It is not a question of box ticking; the
standards must be considered rigorously and with an open mind.

Blackburn with Darwen’s current policy was last reviewed in 2016/17 with minor
amendments in 2019.

Where the revised draft policy differs materially from the Council’s existing
policy and procedures, the proposed changes and any feedback from the trade
are detailed in Appendix 2.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

Once adopted, officers, members and the Courts must have regard to the
revised policy when determining private hire and hackney carriage applications,
reviews and appeals.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The costs incurred as part of the consultation process are accounted for in the
discretionary fees charged for driver licences.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The Department for Transport published the Statutory Standards in 2020 with a
requirement to review and revise policies and practices to implement the new
standards, unless there is a compelling local reason not to. However, the
revised policy is not immutable, and every case must be considered on its own
merits.

The Functions and Responsibility’s Regulations 2000 split the responsibility for
taxi licensing between Council and the Executive.

Decisions relating to the power to inspect and test licensed vehicles (s.50
LGMPA ’76), the power to create hackney carriage stands (s.63 LGMPA '76)
and the power to fix hackney carriage fares (s.65 LGMPA '76) are all Executive
functions.

The remaining powers to consider, grant, impose conditions and charge fees
for drivers, vehicles and operators are all Council functions and the Council has
delegated these powers to the Licensing Committee and officers.

In the absence of a delegation to Licensing Committee to create and adopt
policies covering these elements, that function remains with Council Forum.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Existing staff in the Public Protection Service will implement the revised policy
once it has been approved for adoption.

CONSULTATIONS

Page 5



An eight week public consultation was undertaken with the trade and other
stakeholders on the proposed changes.

The draft policy was published on the Council’s website inviting feedback or
comments throughout the consultation period.

The Licensing Service made direct contact by email or text with licensed
drivers and licensed private hire operators, and the 3 trade associations that
have active memberships in the Borough.

The proposals were discussed at the Taxi Forum on 4 November 2022 and
further meetings were held between officers and representatives of the trade
associations in December.

The Hackney Drivers Association Ltd presented copies of 3 responses they
had received from their members to officers during the consultation meeting on
the 8 December 2022 (Appendix 3).

On 14 December 2022 the Private Hire Drivers Association (PHDA) presented
a 63 page document containing the signatures of 546 drivers with their formal
response to the consultation, to the Executive Member for Environment &
Operations. 22 drivers have also emailed Licensing service directly nominating
the PHDA to act on their behalf. The Association’s formal response can be
found at Appendix 4.

On 31 December a response was submitted by one of the Private Hire
Operators on behalf of 29 drivers which is included as Appendix 5.

Four other individual responses have been emailed directly to the Licensing
Service which are reproduced in Appendix 6.

CONTACT OFFICER
Niky Barrett, Principal Officer — Licensing

Page 6



Appendix 1

BLACKBURN
DARWEN

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Hackney Carriage and Private
Hire Licensing Policy

Page 7 Xx XXX 2023


Appendix 1


This page is left intentionally blank

Page 2 of 16

Page 8



Contents

INEFOAUCTION ...ou bttt s s et eaeeaeneseeeas e eesnaneseens 5
1. ODJBCHVES ...ttt ettt et b e et e s e s eeeneeteeeaeeereenneaeen 5
2. GENEIAI MEHEIS .......coiiiiieeete ettt ettt etb et e ee e e e et e seeeee e eeeeneeeeeetenteanes 6
2.1 DEIBBALIONS. .....veerrircrtiii sttt sttt a e st sa s s as b s s e b ba bt soesnassensen st snesantensassnesasesneasrranes 6
2.2 Sharing of INFOIMEALtION .....c.eeeeriiricrecr sttt st s s ee e e seeseaesssssseasseersenerseanas 6
2.3 LICEBNSING PrOfIIE ooveeeeeieeeee ettt re et rae s et esssa e st e s st saes e esessesareenansenansaneasessssesessenssassersssrsseneas 6
3. DUal LiceNSed DFVETS.......cccoviviveineitieeeeiesteete et este et e e s e eatsate st seteeeneeeee e eeseseseneenea 7
31 FIt N0 PrOPRI ..ottt sttt easa s saas sreba s et e s s s s obeen b s b e e seernessesentsssssnensanennesanns 7
3.2 Duration Of DIVEI'S LICENTES ...euiviuereeeeriirocreiesniereessenesresssssesssssesssesssssssmsssssesessessssssesessmsssessssssennns 7
3.3 Entitlement t0 WOTK in the UK. rsssbess st s eesesessessessensstenesasesssanessasn e 7
3.4 Entitlement to DIve iN The UK ...ttt esssenseesers s e e sesessssessssseesessasssesessnssessssnn 7
3.5  Disclosure and Barring SEIVICE ChBCKS .....cc.cvueeeeieerreeieresesisestsbseesesessessessesssnsssesanssssssssssesasesssssessarsss 7
3.6 DBS UPUAL SEIVICE ....iiuiririirireiiericererecrerensssserestesesessssessessssessesessensarssestsssssestossessssnsensnssnssessssessorsssssns 8
3.7 National Anti-Fraud NEEWOTK .......coocrevrierietiecee et ietssnssens e seemcsessssesssaenssesacsessmeasesossassasnansnsarseas 8
3.8 ENEIISH PrOfiCIENCY v o ieiireirre ittt sttt r bt st vee s e ersstes s es s sast e e e e e e sensatesensesssensrsenns 8
39 Driver Training and KNOWIEUEE TESL ... irrisinierreesre s sessesecnessssessessssonssssssnesnesseeaesssanne 9
3.10 Safeguarding and Child Sexual Exploitation {CSE) training .....ccceeeeveriverieecesacenceosssnssorsersorseressessees 9
311 PractiCal driviNG tEST... . eciereeererteeriereraeseesesccersessasebesteneseessessnssaessesssssssessnseseesessessnessessessrssensssssesnsses 9
3,12 MEICAI FIINESS.......coovieieinistiececcriieceeest st st s s sbetesreasasesbessea e sese e saseras e s s s sebobossssssneserensasssnssesensasasass 9
313 HMRC OBHBAIONS «.coeovveiiicicrierecreicctnreststsstertetrarrevaesasssssssasseressesmsssnssssessessesssasssaseneeneressessenssssnssnsnen 10
3.14  DUal Driver CONGILIONS .....cccviiiiirroiiriniernisesrererestssesessssssssesessesssessesesssssassssesmossassensesssssessosssssennsasns 10
3.15  APPHCALIONS ottt st s s as s b b se e b sa baa e se et enee et sese e bt e e sanneeaees 10
4. Hackney Carriage and Private Hire VehiCles............oc.vooviveeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 11
A1 GERBIAL.....oeer st et s et b et b e e bbb R ae e b Rt she et s saesaenetanearasesotans 11
4.2 DUFAtION OF LICBNCES... ...ttt st s s st es e srs s s assssbessntssesesnesssesaesonasenbotssssseraseens 11
4.3 ROBOWOTTRINESS....c.oorcec et ettt bbb ns b e s srerae b ss s saense s b sses e bonesssesnsassssesraeans 11
4.4 IMSUTANCE c..eteercisr ettt st a4 s s bt sae e s e r s s et arasassaetenssasssssansenanrensshesesassmearsamnsssenssnsssenens 12
4.5 PASSENEEN NUMDEIS ...ttt nereressssssee e sast s ss s sebas bt eebbob e s s eteesnernosasesmasssesensnsessnes 12
4.6  Accident and Car Hire PrOCRAUIE .....u..vveriereereiietreeeseesese e e sesssssesesbscaesneesessensssssensesssssssassenee 12
A7 TAXIMELEIS.....cotiiiiisisiiiisiircrcrer st ee st res e estst s ss et s b e s b b e e e b b obess b e sesssrrntsessesssbasantsessenssessesnasseesssesntos 12
4.8  Specific additional requirements for Hackney Carmiages ... ueeerreernieeriensessesssesesssosssssesssssssnsesees 12
4.9  Specific additional requirements for Private Hire VERICIES ..........c.ceeeeireeirveersornneesseereeseersseseresessns 12
4.10 Restrictions on the issue of Hackney Carriage LICBNCES .......ccceerieieeeevecnviivics s e esesse s seeseseneenns 12
4311  Hackney Carriage RENKS .......vcicirierevreeererreesesreneresssseseserssssssssssssssesssssssssnmessesssossessessssesossssesssesessenenne 13
4.12  Hackney Carriage Tariff.........cceoreeicetrne sttt ettt s s e ssaesrosasesesss e san e s seasensassene 13
4,13 Advertising on Hackney Carmiage VEIICIES ......ccvccrereirereereiir e ressesscesessesssseeesaeseeeseseneanessesesans 13
Page 3 of 16

Page 9



B, SHrEtCNEd LIMOUSINES c.ovvvviriiiee i et eee e et et et et eeseeesaseseeaesseseesaresressasentassrnseseseees 13

6. Private Hire OPEratOrS ..........cvviiieieeieeie e e ettt et s et e e e ene e e e s sessaneaesessaesennnes 14
6.1 GEIEIAL ..ottt r et r e st r e s e s s s e srasaes e e s esasr e sr e sea s et st e R e R b s e b ben bbbt ss b bens it emeemen 14
6.2 DUFLION OF LICENCE ..ocvciviriieiecntnieiee et csesen e see s s s e s s essessessesssbete st s s ss e bes s o s bosbos bt ssbmeesnmenneas 14
6.3  Disclosure and Barring SErVICe ChECKS.........ccciverieiicnniriitiiecnieienisses s ere s ss e esss e ssesaeasssssasesanssenas 14
6.4 ITESUITBIICE 11ttt ieiecre et e st e e e e snrerne s bnsssn e e s e e be st et e et st baan e bt tsebtasnbssnnssbensanranseessessnnsensessrsessncnssennesnens 14
6.5 P BITISES «.iiiuiestiisc it e st en e ae e e eae e e e b e s e e b ras s e se e e b beAa e v Rt er s e e s e b e R e are s R s est e nsaenesRreab e beehe e essasansabaas 14
6.6 REEOTAS ...ttt restas s esstesastesbotsarsesse s eassseas s arastestasssasesmabenesssnssstssabessensesantoborsasones 15
6.7  ADPNCATION PrOCESS ..ccvviriinririciirinirrrererieassassstesesassrsssssssesssssessssessnssssssssesssnsansassossonsosssssontossonmsnesmenane 15
6.8  Non Standard Operator Licences {Limousines, Chauffer or Executive hire)........ccovveeevevvevrenneninenens 16

7. Regulation & ENfOrCemMENt...........oooeeees ettt e anaeeeas 16

8. FBES ..ottt e e s abae s raes et aeaeeean 16

Appendix 1 — Policy on Convictions and other Relevant Matters
Appendix 2 — Dual Driver conditions

Appendix 3 — Supplementary Testing Manual

Appendix 4 — Hackney Carriage By-Laws

Appendix 5 — Hackney Carriage Vehicle conditions

Appendix 6 — Private Hire Vehicle conditions

Appendix 7 — Stretched Limousines

Appendix 8 — Private Hire Operators conditions

Appendix 9 — Penalty Points scheme

Page 4 of 16
Page 10



Introduction

Hackney Carriages have been licensed since the Town Police Clauses Act of 1847 was enacted.

The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, extended licensing requirements to
include Private Hire Vehicles and placed a duty on Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council (“the
Council”) as the relevant Licensing Authority, to regulate Hackney Carriages, Private Hire Vehicles,
their drivers and operators.

When carrying out its regulatory functions, the Council will have regard to this policy in order to provide
assurance to the public that only those individuals it considers are fit and proper, are entrusted to
transport passengers in licensed vehicles that are safe and suitable for use.

Each application or enforcement measure will be considered on its own merits however where it is
deemed necessary to depart from the policy, clear and compelling reasons will be given.

New applicants and existing licence holders are encouraged to read the contents carefully.

This policy will come into effect on XX XXX 2023. and will be subject to periodic reviews at least every
5 years.

1. Objectives

1.1 The protection of the public is of paramount concern for the Licensing Authority when
discharging its licensing functions and the Council will not hesitate to act, when it is made
aware of issues that have the potential to undermine public safety.

1.2 Hackney carriages and private hire vehicles play a vital part in the transport network, providing
an invaluable service to residents and visitors to the Borough alike.

1.3  Licensed drivers are entrusted to transport some of the most vulnerable members of our
society, from the very young, to the elderly and infirm and those who may be incapacitated
through alcohol or drug use, and our communities rely on licensed drivers and their vehicles
to provide a safe and reliable service.

1.4  Licensed vehicles and their drivers enjoy an anonymity on our roads that is shared only by
emergency vehicles. The appearance of a vehicle, whether regularly or otherwise, at any time
of the day or night, does not raise any suspicion as to the reason for it being there, if it is
displaying a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle licence plate.

1.5 The Council will, through the regulation of the trade seek to promote the following objectives:

* The protection of the public, safeguarding children and the vulnerable
¢ The prevention of crime and disorder

¢ The safety and health of the public and drivers

* Vehicle safety, comfort and access

* Providing a quality service to the public

1.6  The Council will work with a wide range of partners when carrying out its duties in respect of
hackney carriage and private hire licensing, including, but not limited to:

Licensed drivers, operators and vehicle proprietors

Local residents

Locally operating Hackney and Private Hire Trade Associations
Lancashire Constabulary

Page 5 of 16
Page 11



2.

2.1
2.1.1

2.1.2

213

214

2.2
2.21

222

2.3
2.3.1

232

» National Anti-Fraud Network

« Driver and Vehicle Standards Agency (formally VOSA)
+« HM Revenue and Customs

e UK Visas and Immigration Department

o Department of Work and Pensions

¢ Lancashire County Council

* The Disclosure and Barring Service

» The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner

e Other Licensing Authorities

General Matters

Delegations

Under the Council's constitution, the General Licensing Sub-Committee has the authority to
discharge non-executive regulatory functions with respect to hackney carriage and private
hire licensing.

The Strategic Director of Environment and Operations has delegated powers to grant
licences where there are no offences or other concerns that give rise to doubts about the
suitability of the applicant to hold a licence.

The Strategic Director of Environment and Operations or other duly authorised officer, has
delegated powers to suspend or revoke driver's licences with immediate effect.

Hackney carriage and private hire vehicle licences may be suspended by the Strategic
Director of Environment and Operations or other duly authorised officer, where appropriate.

Sharing of Information

The Licensing Authority will share with other departments or regulatory bodies, information
supplied by applicants, or acquired in the course of exercising licensing functions, where it is
lawful to do so. Personal information will only be disclosed in accordance with data protection
legislation.

Information sharing may include requests from the Police or other enforcement/regulatory
agencies where this is necessary for the detection or prevention of crime, or required by law,
or in connection with legal proceedings.

Licensing Profile

Hackney carriage and private hire vehicles are vehicles licensed to carry no more than 8
passengers, but may be licensed to carry fewer persons.

Hackney carriage vehicles may be used to ply for hire in the street, at ranks or stands and
may take bookings over the telephone. Private hire vehicles must be booked in advance, by
the customer, through a private hire operator, and cannot be hailed in the street or stand at a
rank.

Page 6 of 16

Page 12



3.

3.1
3.1.1

3.1.3

3.2
3.2.1

3.2.2

3.3
3.3.1

3.3.2

3.4
3.41

3.4.2

3.5
3.5.1

Dual Licensed Drivers

Fit and Proper

The Council will not issue a licence to any applicant, unless it is satisfied that they are fit and
proper to hold such a licence. There is no statutory definition of what constitutes fit and proper
but the Council has adopted the following test when determining applications or licence
reviews - “Without any prejudice and based on the information before you, would you
allow a person for whom you care, regardless of their condition or vulnerability, to travel
alone in a vehicle driven by this person, at any time of the day or night?”

Decisions in respect of driver licences will be made on the balance of probabilities and where
there are concerns that tip that balance, individuals will not be permitted to hold a Blackburn
with Darwen driver’s licence.

The Council's policy on convictions and other relevant matters which it considers are likely to
impact on an individual’s suitability to hold a licence forms Appendix 1 to this policy.

Duration of Driver's Licences

The Council will normally issue driver licences for three years, unless the applicant specifically
requests a 1 year licence. However, the Council will issue licences for a lesser period as it
deems appropriate in the circumstances of the case.

Any driver who allows their licence to expire for a period of six months or more must complete
the full application process again.

Entitlement to Work in the UK

All applicants must have the right to live and work in the UK and demonstrate this at the point
of application.

Where a successful applicant is subject to a time limitation on their right to remain and work in
the UK, a licence will not be granted beyond that date. Applicants who are disqualified from
driving a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle by reason of their immigration status will not
be considered for a licence.

Entitlement to Drive in the UK

All applicants must have held a valid, full UK driving licence for a minimum of twelve months
immediately before making their application and authorise the Council to undertake periodic
checks with the DVLA, to verify the existence of any motoring convictions or restrictions on
their licence

Applicants who have an EC/EEA driver licence must exchange it for a British licence before
a licence will be issued. For information on how to do so please visit GOV.UK - Exchange a
foreign driving licence.

Disclosure and Barring Service checks

All applicants for a Blackburn with Darwen driver's licence must provide an enhanced
disclosure certificate issued by the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) which includes
checks that the individual is not barred from working in regulated activity with children or adults.
This must be applied for via the Council's nominated service provider.

Page 7 of 16
Page 13



3.5.2

3.5.3

3.5.4

3.6
3.6.1

3.6.2

3.6.3

3.6.4

3.6.5

3.7
3.71

3.7.2

3.7.3

3.8
3.8.1

The Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 does not apply to applicants for driver licences, who
are therefore required to disclose all convictions, cautions and motoring offences etc., including
those that would ordinarily be regarded as spent.

Any applicant who has spent six continuous months or more overseas within the last 5 years,
will also be required to produce a Certificate of Good Conduct from the relevant Embassy or
High Commission, for each country where they resided. The certificate must have been
produced no more than 3 months before it is presented to the Council. This document must be
a certified translation, if the original Embassy Certificate is not in English.

Asylum seekers who hold a Home Office issued application registration documents together
with a verification letter from the Home Office’s Employer Checking Service stating that the
named individual is permitted to work in the UK, will be exempt from the requirement to submit
a Certificate of Good Conduct.

DBS Update Service

All licensed drivers must sign up to the DBS update service and maintain their registration
throughout the licensed period, to enable the Council to undertake periodic checks at least
every 6 months, in accordance with the Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards.

Licensed drivers who fail to register with the update service, or who allow their registration to
lapse, will be required to provide a new enhanced certificate every six months.

Where the Council is unable to check the driver’s status due to failings on the part of the driver,
it may suspend the drivers licence until such time as it is satisfied that there is no new
information recorded against the driver.

Nothing in this section will negate the requirement for licensed drivers to inform the Council
within 48 hours of any arrest and release, charge or conviction of any sexual offence, any
offence involving dishonesty or violence and any motoring offence.

If there has been a change to the information held by the DBS, the driver will be required to
provide a new certificate to the Council and register that one with the update service.

National Anti-Fraud Network

The Council subscribes to the National Register of Taxi Licence Refusals and Revocations
(NR3), and shares details of individuals who have had a driver's licence suspended or
revoked, or an application for one refused.

Where a driver’s licence is suspended, revoked or refused, the Council will automatically
record this decision on NR3.

All applicants for a new licence or a licence renewal will automatically be checked on NR3. If
there is an entry on NR3 about an applicant, the Council will seek further information about
the entry on the register from the relevant authority, before determining the application.

English proficiency

The Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards 2020 identify that a lack of language
proficiency could impact on a driver's ability to understand written documents, such as policies
and guidance, relating to the protection of children and vulnerable adults and applying this to
identify and act on signs of exploitation. Oral proficiency will be of relevance in the identification
of potential exploitation through communicating with passengers and their interaction with
others.

Page 8 of 16

Page 14



3.8.2 Itgoes on to state in para 6.15, that a licensing authority’s test of a driver’'s proficiency should
cover both oral and written English language skills to achieve these objectives.

3.8.3 The Council requires all applicants for new driver's licences to demonstrate their language
proficiency, either by providing evidence of formal qualifications such as GCSE, GCE,
Functional Skills Level 1 or 2 in English, or ESOL certificate at Level 1 or 2.

3.8.4 Applicants who do not hold any formal qualifications in English must undertake a free skills
assessment provided by Blackburn Adult Learning service and provide evidence that they have
passed the assessment.

3.9 Driver Training and Knowledge Test

3.9.1 Applicants for a new driver's licence will be required to pass the Blackburn with Darwen
Knowledge Test before being issued with a licence. A fee is required for the driver training
sessions and tests and any applicant cancelling an appointment with less than 48 hours’ notice,
will not be eligible for a refund.

3.9.2 The Council publishes a comprehensive guidance pack and training for new drivers on its
website, to help them prepare for the driver training and knowledge test.

3.9.3 If an applicant fails three successive tests, their application will be rejected and a period of 12
months must elapse, before they will be eligible to book onto the driver training session again.

3.9.4 Applicants must bring in their photo-card driving licence on the day of the test. This must be in
date and have their current address on it.

3.10 Safeguarding and Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) training

3.10.1 Licensed drivers are an integral part of modern life and play an important role in providing a
safe means of transport to all sections of the community. Drivers come into contact with some
of the most vulnerable members of society and it is essential that they are aware of the real
issues and signs of child sexual exploitation, county lines and other safeguarding concerns, to
enable them to report suspicious behaviour appropriately.

3.10.2 In order for them to recognise the signs of CSE and other forms of exploitation such as County
Lines, all applicants for Blackburn with Darwen driver licences must have successfully
completed an el.earning Safeguarding Course provided by the Council’'s nominated provider.

3.11 Practical driving test

The Council's approved suppliers for the required practical driving test is published on the
Council's website. A licence will not be granted until the applicant can produce evidence that
they have successfully passed the driving test.

3.12 Medical Fitness

3.12.1 The Council recognises that licensed drivers should meet more stringent medical standards
than those expected of people who drive a vehicle for social, domestic and pleasure purposes.

3.12.2 Licensed drivers are entrusted with the safety of the travelling public and may drive for much
longer hours than non-professional drivers. To this end the Council requires all licensed drivers
to meet the Group 2 standard used by the DVLA when licensing public service vehicle drivers.

3.12.3 Medical certificates, completed by the driver's own GP practice, or by one of the Council’s
approved suppliers for medicals as published on the Council's website, are required on first

Page 9 of 16
Page 15



application and then every 5 years from age 45 until the age of 65 when they are required
annually.

3.12.4 Where a driver develops a new medical condition whilst licensed, they should visit their GP
who will assess their fitness to continue to drive the general public. If they are not be able to
drive the public after visiting their GP, they must surrender their driver’s licence to the Council.

3.12.5 Should there be any doubt as to the medical fitness of a licensed driver, including
circumstances where a medical certificate has expired, the Council reserves the right to
suspend the driver's licence until such time as it can be satisfied that the driver meets the
group 2 standard.

3.12.6 All licensed drivers must inform the Licensing Authority, within 7 days, of any change to their
health, which could impact on their ability to meet the group 2 standard, or continue to drive a
licensed vehicle.

3.12.7 No applicant will be issued a licence until medical fitness has been established.

3.13 HMRC Obligations

3.13.1 From 4 April 2022 all applicants who are renewing a Blackburn with Darwen driver’s licence,
(or who have held a driver’s licence within the previous 12 months irrespective of which Local
Authority granted it), must complete an online HMRC tax check and provide a valid tax check
code to enable the Council to verify this has been done, before an application for a licence
can be considered.

3.13.2 Applications for new driver’s licences must sign a declaration confirming they are aware of
their tax obligations, before their application can be considered.

3.14 Dual Driver Conditions

All Blackburn with Darwen driver licences are issued subject to the Council's standard
conditions (Appendix 2).

3.15 Applications

Applications and supporting documentation for driver's licences must be submitted online
through the Council’'s website.

Page 10 of 16

Page 16



4,

4.1
4.1.1

4.1.4
4.1.4

4.1.5

4.2

4.3
4.3.1

4.3.2

4.3.3

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicles

General

The Council will not issue a vehicle licence for any vehicle which is licensed as either a
hackney carriage or private hire vehicle with any other Local Authority. If the Council
becomes aware that other vehicle licences are running concurrently with this Council’s
licence, the Blackburn with Darwen vehicle licence will be immediately revoked.

New vehicles being presented for a licence must meet the following minimum emissions
standards.

Euro 4 emission limits (petrol) Euro 6 emission limits (diesel)
CO - 1.0 g/km CO - 0.50 g/km

HC - 0.10 g/km HC+ NOx — 0.17 g/km

NOx - 0.08 NOx - 0.08 g/km

PM — no limit PM — 0.005 g/km

PM —6.0x10 AM11/km

All licensed vehicles must have an appropriate “type approval’. Vehicles that were first
registered in the N1 category (van/minibus) and which have been subsequently modified to carry
passengers, must have Individual Vehicle Approval and the Council will require confirmation of
such approval. Further information on how to obtain a certificate is available here.

The Council will not licence vehicles with fewer than 4 road wheels

Licensed vehicles will be issued with a plate for life which must be securely fixed to the exterior
of the rear of the vehicle at all times that the vehicle licence is in force.

Licensed vehicles must not have any fittings attached to, or carried on the inside or outside of
the vehicle that have not been approved by the Council, or display any signs, notices or
advertisements that are not legally required, or have been expressly authorised by the Council.

Duration of Licences

Vehicle licences will normally be issued for 12 months for vehicles aged less than 3 years and
for 6 months for vehicles aged 3 years or more.

Roadworthiness

The Council will only issue a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle licence where it is satisfied
that the vehicle is safe, suitable in terms of its size, type and design and provides a reasonable
standard of comfort for passengers.

To achieve this, in addition to the standard MOT requirements, vehicles presented for licensing
must also meet the standards set out in the Council's Supplementary Testing Manual (Appendix
3). Vehicle testing is carried out at the Council’s Motor Vehicle Service Station, Davyfield Road,
Blackburn.

The Council will not issue a vehicle licence for any vehicle that has been written off by insurers
under category A, B or S.

* A relates to vehicles that must be scrapped
» B relates to vehicles that may be broken and their parts reused

» S relates to vehicles that have sustained structural damage that is repairable.

Page 11 of 16
Page 17



4.4

4.5

4.6
4.6.1

46.2

4.6.3

4.7
471

47.2

4.8

4.8.1
482
483

4.9

4.10

Insurance

Hackney carriage and private hire vehicle proprietors must ensure that appropriate insurance is
in force throughout the licensed period. Any vehicle that is not adequately insured for public hire
or private hire during the licence period, will have its licence immediately suspended.

Passenger numbers

Vehicle licences are normally issued for the carriage of between 4 and 8 passengers in
reasonable comfort. They should have not less than 3 doors through which passengers may
enter and leave the vehicle conveniently, safely and comfortably and provide reasonable
accommodation for luggage. Approved passenger numbers must not be exceeded under any
circumstances.

Accident and Car Hire Procedure

The proprietor of a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle that is involved in an accident must
report full details of the accident to the Council within 72 hours. If the initial report is verbal, an
accident report form must be completed and returned to the Council within 24 hours of the verbal
notification. If a hire car is to be used, details of that car must also be entered onto the form.

On receipt of an accident report, the Council will arrange for an officer to inspect the vehicle and
if it is found to be unfit to be used for hackney carriage or private hire purposes, the licence will
be suspended until such time as the vehicle has been repaired and has been re-inspected at
the Council’s motor vehicle service station for a suspension lift.

The Council issued licence plate must be returned during any period of suspension.

Taximeters

All hackney carriages must be fitted with taximeter which is sealed and maintained so as to
comply with the hackney carriage licence conditions.

A private hire vehicle may be fitted with a taximeter which should be constructed, attached and
maintained so as to comply with the private hire vehicle conditions.

Specific additional requirements for Hackney Carriages
All hackney carriage vehicles must be black and wheelchair accessible
The only exception is for London Type cabs which may be a different colour.

All hackney carriage vehicle licences issued by the Council are subject the Hackney Carriage
By-Laws (Appendix 4) and the Council's standard conditions (Appendix 5).

Specific additional requirements for Private Hire Vehicles

All private hire vehicle licences issued by the Council are subject the Council's standard
conditions (Appendix 6).

Restrictions on the issue of Hackney Carriage Licences

The Council currently restricts the number of hackney carriages it licenses to 70 and periodically
undertakes a survey to establish if there is any significant unmet demand for hackney carriages,
which it would need to address either by increasing the limits, or delimiting hackney carriage
numbers.

Page 12 of 16

Page 18



4.11 Hackney Carriage Ranks

4.11.1 The Council has provided a number of designated hackney carriage ranks throughout the
Borough. Drivers must never leave a hackney carriage vehicle unattended on a rank at any
time.

4.11.2 Drivers of private hire vehicles must not use, or wait on a hackney carriage rank at all.

412 Hackney Carriage Tariff

4.12.1 The Council is responsible for setting the hackney carriage tariff and each hackney carriage
must have its taximeter calibrated to the current tariff and must display the table of fares provided
by the Council, where it can easily be read by a passenger.

4.12.2 The Council has no ability to control the fares charged by the private hire trade and it is for the
hirer to negotiate an appropriate fee or method of charging for each journey.

4.13 Advertising on Hackney Carriage Vehicles

4.13.1 Applications for approval of advertisements must be made in writing to the Licensing Service.
An application must be accompanied by a copy of the proposed advertisement in full colour and
include the actual dimensions of the proposed advertisement.

4.13.2 All advertisements must comply with the British Code of Advertising Practice issued by the
Advertising Standards Authority and must be legal, decent, honest and truthful. Each application
will be considered on its own merits but, any advertisements containing political, ethnic,
religious, sexual or controversial texts, or advertising tobacco or alcohol products, or foods that
are high in fat, salt or sugar will not be approved.

5. Stretched Limousines

5.1 Licences for stretched limousines are issued subject to the Council's standard conditions
(Appendix 7).

5.2 For the purposes of this policy and licence conditions, a stretch limousine is defined as:

» a motor vehicle that has been lengthened by the insertion of an additional body section
and modified by a coachbuilder to contain luxury facilities and fixtures and is capable of
carrying up to, but not exceeding 8 passengers;

» that prior to the introduction of this policy could not currently be licensed by the Council
as a Private Hire Vehicle;

 thatis not a decommissioned military or emergency service vehicle

Page 13 of 16

Page 19



6.
6.1

6.1.1

6.2

6.3
6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.3.4

6.3.5

6.4

6.5
6.5.1

Private Hire Operators

General

The Council recognises that private hire operators and their dispatchers play an important role
in providing access to a safe means of transport to all members of society. Their role, alongside
that of the licensed drivers they dispatch, places them in daily contact with some of the most
vulnerable members of our society and as such they are ideally placed to assist all those
agencies who have a statutory responsibility to safeguard the vulnerable.

Private hire operators are responsible for ensuring that all the vehicles and drivers they dispatch
hold valid, appropriate licences to undertake those journeys.

All private hire operator's licences are issued subject to the Council's standard conditions
(Appendix 8).

Duration of Licence

Private hire operator’s licences can be issued for a period of one year or five years.

Disclosure and Barring Service Checks

In accordance with the Statutory Guidance the Council requires applicants to provide a recent
basic DBS certificate before a private hire operator's licence will be granted, and then annually
throughout the duration of the licence, in respect of the person named on the licence, or for each
director or partner where the licence is held by a company or partnership.

Where an applicant, director or partner also holds a valid Blackburn with Darwen driver's licence,
the requirements in 6.3.1 are dis-applied in respect of that individual.

Any applicant who has spent six continuous months or more, overseas within the last 5 years,
will also be required to produce a Certificate of Good Conduct from the relevant Embassy or
High Commission, for each country where they resided. The certificate must have been
produced no more than 3 months before it is presented to the Council. This document must be
a certified translation, if the original Embassy Certificate is not in English

Operators are also expected to be able to demonstrate that all staff who have contact with the
public or oversee the dispatching of vehicles do not pose a risk to the public and should evidence
that they have had sight of a satisfactory Basic DBS check for each individual named on the
register required by 6.6.4.

Applications for private hire operators licences must provide a copy of their policy on employing
ex-offenders in roles that would be on the register required by 6.6.4.

Insurance

Private hire operators are required to provide proof of employer's liability insurance and where
the public have access to the premises to be licensed, they must also have adequate public
liability insurance.

Premises

Where a private hire operator provides premises for the public they shall at all times, be
maintained in a clean and tidy condition, be adequately lit, heated and ventilated and where a
waiting area is provided have adequate seating facilities.

Page 14 of 16

Page 20



6.5.2

6.5.3

6.6
6.6.1

6.6.2

6.6.3
6.6.4

6.6.5

6.7
6.7.1

6.7.2

If sanitary and washing facilities are provided for customers in addition to those provided for staff
they should be clean, easily accessible and have a supply of hot and cold running water, soap
and a suitable means to dry hands.

If separate male and female facilities are not provided, any WC made available to the public
must be self-contained and in a room that is capable of being locked from the inside to prevent
access by more than one person at a time.

Records

Private hire operators are required to keep comprehensive records of all bookings. As a
minimum, licensed operators must record details of:-

* the name of the passenger,

the time of the request;

¢ the pick-up point;

o the destination;

» the name of the driver;

» the driver’s licence number;

» the vehicle registration number of the vehicle;

+ the name of any individual that responded to the booking request;
+ the name of any individual that dispatched the vehicle.

Full details must be recorded separately, of any bookings that are sub-contracted to or from
another private hire operator.

Booking records must be retained for a minimum of 12 months.

A register of dispatch staff, who are not also licensed drivers, which includes their full name,
address, date of birth and National Insurance number, shall be maintained and made available
to an authorised officer of the Council on request.

The use of a driver who holds a PCV licence and the use of a public service vehicle (PSV) such
as a minibus to undertake a private hire vehicle booking, is not permitted without the informed
consent of the booker.

Application process

Private hire operator licences clearly indicate the expiry date of the licence and it is the
responsibility of the operator to ensure that a valid application is submitted to the Council before
the licence expires.
Applications will not be determined until the applicant is able to produce:

+ Evidence of appropriate planning permission

» Sample door sign

+ Basic DBS certificates (where required by 6.3.1)

» A copy of their policy on employing ex-offenders

« Payment of the appropriate fee

Page 15 of 16

Page 21



6.8
6.8.1

6.8.2

6.8.3

6.8.4

7.3

7.4

8.2

8.3

Non Standard Operator Licences (Limousines, Chauffer or Executive hire)

Business Plan — Applicants must provide details demonstrating how the business will operate,
including details of the type of customers targeted by the business; details of any website or
social media presence; customer methods of payment; method used by customers to book a
vehicle.

Dress Policy - if the applicants business adheres to a dress code, this would support the case
for a non-standard licence. Officers will take into account any requirements for drivers to wear
a full chauffer uniform or other dress code when assessing the application.

Specialist skills — in addition to holding a Blackburn with Darwen driver’s licence, the applicant
business may require their drivers to have other specialist skills. These should be specified in
the business plan. Officers will take into account any requirements for drivers to have additional
skills or training e.g. defensive driving or advanced driving courses, or to be members of a
professional body, when assessing the application.

If the Licensing Officer is satisfied that the (proposed) business is not involved in the provision
of traditional private hire services, it would be eligible for a non-standard operator’s licence.
Non-standard private hire operator’s licence holders will be exempt from the requirements to
display council issued door stickers and plates on their vehicles. Window discs will be provided
which must be displayed in the front windscreen.

Regulation & Enforcement

The Council has a duty to ensure that the vehicles, drivers and operators that it licenses, carry
out their functions in accordance with the legislation and licence conditions.

The Council operates a penalty point scheme (Appendix 9). Licensed drivers or vehicle
proprietors will be issued with penalty points in accordance with scheme and where a licence
holder accumulates 20 or more points in any 12 month period, they would be referred to the
General Licensing Sub—Committee for a review of their fitness to hold a licence. The panel
members have the authority to impose a range of sanctions dependant on the circumstances.
Sanctions could include a simple warning, the requirement to pay for and attend driver training,
or in some cases the suspension or revocation of the licence.

The Council invites complaints, concerns or compliments about individual drivers, vehicles or
operators via the website. All complaints received will be recorded against the licence holder,
but anonymous complaints would not normally be investigated further, unless there is
independent evidence to corroborate the allegations.

Officers charged with the regulation of the hackney carriage and private hire trade will be
appropriately trained and authorised within the Council's scheme of delegation.

Fees

The Council sets and regularly reviews its fees for taxi and private hire licensing, in line with the
Governments requirement that fees should only cover the costs involved in the administration
and regulation of licensed operators, drivers and vehicles.

A list of the current licence fees can be found on the Council's website along with some
miscellaneous charges for duplicate plates, badges and licences etc.

Licence holders who surrender a licence before its natural expiry, are not eligible for a refund.

Page 16 of 16

Page 22



APPENDIX 1

BLACKBURN
DARWEN

Hackney Carriage and Private
Hire Licensing

Policy on Convictions and
other Relevant Matters

Page 23

1 February 2023



11

1.2

1.3

14

15

1.6

1.7

Introduction

This document aims to provide guidance to any person with an interest in public and private
hire licensing, on the criteria that may be taken into account by Blackburn with Darwen
Council, when determining if an applicant or existing licence holder, is a fit and proper person
to hold a licence. This includes:

e Applicants for drivers’ licences

» Existing licensed drivers whose licences are being reviewed

e Applicants for operators licences

» Existing licensed operators whose licences are being reviewed

® Licensing Officers

e Members of the Licensing Committee / Panel (or other relevant decision making body)
» Magistrates hearing appeals against local authority decisions

e Lancashire Constabulary

The overriding aim of the Licensing Authority is to protect the public and it is ultimately
concerned to ensure:

e That licence holders are fit and proper.

» That the public are not exposed to persons with a history of dishonesty, indecency or
violence.

® The safeguarding of children and young persons and vulnerable adults.

The relevant sections of this policy will also be applied to applicants for, or holders of, Private
Hire Operator’s licences in so far as they relate to the fitness and propriety of the applicant.

The term “Fit and Proper” for the purposes of taxi and private hire licensing is not legally defined,
but to assist decision makers, Blackburn with Darwen Council has adopted the following test in
accordance with the Statutory Guidance issued by the Department for Transport in 2020
“Without any prejudice and based on the information before you, would you allow a person
for whom you care, regardless of their condition or vulnerability, to travel alone in a vehicle
driven by this person, at any time of the day or night?”

All decisions will be made on the balance of probabilities and the Council will not give any
applicant the benefit of doubt, or issue licences for a probationary period. If the
committee/panel is only “50/50” as to whether the applicant is ‘fit and proper’, they will not be
permitted to hold a Blackburn with Darwen licence.

Whilst criminal convictions, cautions and motoring offences rightly play a part in the Licensing
Authority’s consideration of the fitness of an individual, the Council will also take into account
other relevant factors, including, but not limited to; the demeanour, medical fitness, integrity
and general character of the applicant; their driving record; information registered on NR3; soft
intelligence from the Police or other regulatory body and any relevant information from other
Licensing Authorities or statutory bodies.

Restorative justice and other criminal disposals are increasingly used by the police as a less
formal way of dealing with issues and as an alternative to the criminal court system. The Council
recognises that restorative justice and other out of court disposals tend to be applied in less
serious cases, or for first time offenders, nevertheless all such disposals will be taken into
account when determining if a person is a fit and proper person,

Pagé 24



18

1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

1.13

1.14

115

1.16

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

31

In the case of existing licence holders, the Council will also take account of any history of
compliance issues, complaints or allegations.

Where Licensing Officers have delegated powers to grant licences, they may do so in accordance
with these guidelines. In all other cases, applicants for licences will be referred to the Licensing
Committee/Panel. Nothing in this Policy prevents a Licensing Officer from referring any applicant
or licence holder to the committee/panel, where they find it appropriate to do so, in the
circumstances.

The Council recognises that it must not fetter its discretion and therefore it will consider and
determine each case on its own merits, whilst having regard to this policy.

The Licensing Committee/Panel may, in exceptional circumstances, depart substantially from
this policy, but it should be noted that, the otherwise good character or driving record of an
applicant, would not ordinarily be considered to be exceptional circumstances.

Where the Authority does depart from this policy, it will give clear reasons for doing so.

Whilst existing licences will not be automatically revoked if the holders do not meet the
standards in this policy, should the conduct, or offending activity of an existing licence holder be
of concern to the Licensing Authority, following its adoption, the Council may consider such
activity and re-evaluate any decision made in reliance on any previous policy.

Throughout this policy the term “conviction” includes criminal, civil or motoring convictions,
cautions, warnings, reprimands, orders and endorsable Fixed Penalty Notices.

The term “applicant” includes new applicants and existing licence holders.

The term “from date sentence ended” relates to the actual sentence imposed and not to the
time served, by the offender.

General Policy

Whilst a person with a conviction for a serious offence need not be automatically barred from
obtaining a licence, it is normally be expected that they:

i} Remain free of convictions for an appropriate period; and

ii} Demonstrate adequate evidence that they are a fit and proper person to hold a licence

The onus is on the applicant to produce such evidence and simply remaining free of convictions,
will not normally be regarded as adequate evidence of fitness and propriety.

The Council may fail to be satisfied that an individual is a fit and proper person to hold a driver’s
licence or an operator’s licence for any good reason. If adequate evidence that a person is a fit
and proper person is not adduced, or if there is reason to question or doubt the evidence
provided, that in itself, could satisfy the Council that it should refuse or revoke a licence.

Where an applicant has been convicted of a criminal offence, the licensing authority cannot
review the merits of the conviction [Nottingham City Council v. Mohammed Farooq (1998)].

Powers

Section 61 of the Local Government Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1976 permits the Licensing
Authority to suspend, revoke or refuse to renew a licence, if the licence holder has been
convicted of an offence involving dishonesty, indecency, violence; failed to comply with the
provisions of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847; failed to comply with the provisions of Part Il of

Pagé 25



3.2

3.3

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

the Local Government {Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976; been convicted of an immigration
offence or required to pay an immigration penalty; or for any other reasonable cause.

Section 62 of the Local Government Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1976 permits the Licensing
Authority to suspend, revoke or refuse to renew an Operator’s Licence if the licence holder has
failed to comply with the provisions of Part Il of the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976; if their conduct appears to the Licensing Authority to render them unfit to
hold an Operator’s Licence; other than those circumstances where the conviction is spent within
the meaning Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974, has been convicted of an immigration
offence or required to pay an immigration penalty; or any other reasonable cause.

The Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 (Exceptions) (Amendment) Order 2002, allows the
Licensing Authority to take into account all convictions recorded against an applicant for a
driver’s licence, whether spent or not. Therefore the Licensing Authority will have regard to all
relevant convictions, particularly where there is a long history of offending, or a recent pattern
of repeat offending.

Consideration of Offending History

The Licensing Authority is required to ensure that an applicant for the grant or renewal of a
licence is a ‘fit and proper’ person to hold such a licence.

In considering evidence of an individual’s good character and fitness to hold a licence, where
previous offences or other information relating to the applicants conduct is disclosed, the
Council will consider among other things:

1. How serious the offence(s) are

The intent or harm which was, or could have been caused
When the offence(s) were committed

Any sentence imposed by the court

The circumstances of the individual at the time of the offence
Whether this forms part of a pattern of offending

Any other factors that are considered relevant

NouswN

The Licensing Authority requires enhanced disclosures from the Disclosure and Barring Service
{DBS) off any applicant for a Blackburn with Darwen driver’s licence and it follows the relevant
Code of Practice on the secure storage, handling, use, retention and disposal of disclosure
information.

Blackburn with Darwen Council requires licence holders to be registered with the DBS update
service to enable the Licensing Authority to carry out periodic checks using the online service.

Conditions on drivers’ licences require holders to notify the Licensing Authority within 48 hours
of any arrest, charge or conviction for any sexual offence, any offence involving dishonesty or
violence, or any motoring offence. This should trigger an initial review by the licensing authority
to consider what, if any, action in terms of the licence, should be taken based on the balance of
probabilities at that time.

The Council has a wide discretion on what information it may have regard to when making a
determination and is entitled to rely on other records and information that may be available to
it, when determining applications or licence reviews. This could include information held by this
Council, other licensing authorities, information disclosed by the police under the Common Law
Disclosure Scheme, or any other credible source.

Pagé 26



4.6

4.7

4.8

7.1

7.2

7.3

9.1

9.2

Applicants who have a serious criminal history of offending may pose a significant risk to the
public and are likely to be refused a licence even after the stated period expressed as being “free
from offending” has expired. A serious criminal history of offending would include applicants
who have multiple reievant offences, or who have been sentenced to a cumulative term of
imprisonment of 6 months or more.

Where an applicant is convicted of an offence which is not detailed in this guidance, the licensing
authority will take that conviction into account and use these guidelines as an indication of the
approach that should be taken.

References produced by drivers attesting to their good character must be provided at least 3
working days in advance of the hearing date. They must be current and have been produced by
the referee in the full knowledge of the specific reason they are being presented to the Sub-
Committee.

Crimes resulting in death

Where an applicant has been convicted of a crime which resulted in the death of another person,
or was intended to cause the death or serious injury of another person they will not be licensed.

Exploitation

Where an applicant has been convicted of a crime involving, related to, or has any connection
with abuse, exploitation, use or treatment of another individual irrespective of whether the
victim or victims were adults or children, they will not be licensed.

This includes slavery, child sexual exploitation, grooming, psychological, emotional or financial
abuse, but this is not an exhaustive list.

Offences involving violence

Where an applicant has a conviction for an offence of violence against the person, or connected
with any offence of violence, a licence will not be granted until at least 10 years have elapsed
since the completion of any sentence imposed.

A licence will not normally be granted where an applicant has convictions for the following
offences unless at least 5 years have passed since the conviction or completion of any sentence:-
Common assault; Harassment, 5.4 Public Order Act 1986 (fear or provocation of violence}; .5
Public Order Act 1986 (harassment alarm or distress)

A licence will not normally be granted where the applicant has a conviction for criminal damage
unless at least 3 years has passed since the conviction or completion of any sentence.

Possession of a weapon

Where an applicant has a conviction for possession of a weapon or any other weapon related
offence, a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of
any sentence imposed.

Sexual and indecency offences

Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence involving or connected with illegal sexual
activity or any form of indecency, a licence will not be granted.

The licensing authority will not grant a licence to any applicant who is currently on the Sex
Offenders Register or on any ‘barred’ list.

Page 27



10.

101

10.2

11.

111

11.2

11.3

12,

13.

131

13.2

13.3

134

Dishonesty

Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence of dishonesty, or any offence where
dishonesty is an element of the offence, a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have
elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.

Applicants or existing licence holders that are found to have intentionally misled the council, or
lied as part of the application process, will not be granted a licence, or be permitted to keep
their licence.

Drugs

Where an applicant has a conviction for, or related to, the supply of drugs, or possession with
intent to supply, or connected with possession with intent to supply, a licence will not be granted
until at least 10 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.

Where an applicant has a conviction for possession of drugs, or related to the possession of
drugs, a licence will not be granted until at least 5 years have elapsed since the completion of
any sentence imposed. In these circumstances, any applicant may also have to undergo drugs
testing for a period at their own expense to demonstrate that they are not using controlled
drugs.

Applicants with 2 or more convictians for drug related offences will not normally be granted a
licence.

Discrimination

Where an applicant has a conviction involving or connected with discrimination in any form, a
licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any
sentence imposed.

Motoring convictions

Licensed drivers are professional drivers charged with the responsibility of carrying the public.
It is accepted that offences can be committed unintentionally, and a single occurrence of a
minor traffic offence would not prohibit the grant of a licence.

However, applicants with multiple motoring convictions may indicate that an applicant does
not exhibit the behaviours of a safe road user and one that is suitable to drive professionally

A minor traffic or vehicle related offence is considered to be one which does not involve loss of
life, driving under the influence of drink or drugs, driving whilst using a mabile phone, and has
not resulted in injury to any person or damage to any property, including vehicles.

An applicant with 7 or more points on their DVLA licence for minor traffic or vehicle related
offences, will not be granted a licence until at least 5 years have elapsed since the completion
of any sentence imposed.

A major traffic or vehicle related offence is one which is not covered in 13.3 and includes any
offence which resuited in injury to any person or damage to any property, including vehicles. It
also includes driving without insurance or any offence connected with motor insurance.

Where an applicant has a conviction for a major traffic offence or similar offence, a licence will
not be granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence
imposed.

Pagé 28



13.5

14.

141

14.2

15.

16.

17.

17.1

17.2

17.3

174

175

17.6

7.7

The committee/panel will have regard to the circumstances of each offence and where
offences involve the use of a licensed vehicle in the course of hackney carriage or private hire
work, this will be considered to be an aggravating factor.

Drink/Drug driving

Where an applicant has a conviction for drink driving or driving under the influence of drugs, a
licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any
sentence or driving ban imposed.

In the case of driving under the influence of drugs an applicant may also have to undergo drugs
testing at their own expense to demonstrate that they are not using controlled drugs.

Using a hand held device whilst driving

Where an applicant has a conviction for using a held-hand mobile telephone or a hand-held
device whilst driving, a licence will not be granted until at least 5 years have elapsed since the
conviction or completion of any sentence or driving ban imposed, whichever is the later.

Licensing offences

Where an applicant has a conviction for an offence concerned with or connected to hackney
carriage or private hire activity, a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have elapsed
since the completion of any sentence imposed.

Non-conviction information

The Council will also take into account situations or circumstances that have not led to a
conviction for whatever reason, including situations where the person has been arrested and
bailed, but not yet charged, acquittals, circumstances in which convictions were quashed on
technicalities, circumstances where a decision was taken not to prosecute and complaints from
the public.

When considering the most appropriate action to take in respect of non-conviction information,
the Council recognises that it is not bound by the criminal burden of proof and must merely be
satisfied, on the balance of probability that the mischief under consideration had occurred.

The Licensing Authority will take into account the credibility of; the complainant; any witnesses;
and the licence holder, along with any other evidence produced, when reaching a decision.

If an applicant has been arrested or charged, but not convicted for an offence which suggests
they could be a danger to the public, serious consideration will be given to refusing the
application or revoking the licence in the first instance, subject to the requirements of section
18.3.

Where an applicant has previcusly been refused a licence or had a licence revoked, a new licence
will not normally be considered until at least 2 years have elapsed since the Council’s original
decision.

Where compelling new evidence becomes available, and is such that if it had been available at
the time of the original decision, it would probably not have resulted in a refusal or revocation,
para 17.5 may be dis-applied.

In assessing the appropriate course of action to take, the safety of the travelling public wili
always be the paramount concern.

Pagé 29



18.

18.1

18.2

8.3

184

19.

20.

20.1

20.2

21.

21.1

21.2

Once a licence has been granted

Once a licence has been granted, there is a continuing requirement for the licensee to remain
fit and proper to hold the licence. Where the licensing authority is considering a licence review,
any conduct or convictions which would have resulted in a refusal to grant a licence in
accordance with this policy, will result in an existing licence being revoked.

Suspension or revocation of a driver’s licence ordinarily takes effect at the end of the period of
21 days beginning with the day on which the decision notice setting out the reasons for the
suspension or revocation is given to the driver.

If the Licensing Authority deem it necessary for the suspension or revocation to have immediate
effect in the interests of public safety, the notice given to the driver must also include a
statement issued under Section 61 (2B) Local Government {Miscellaneous Provision) Act 1976,
that the suspension or revocaticn is effective immediately and the reasons why.

Any suspension or revocation of an Operator’s Licence takes effect at the end of the period of
21 days beginning with the day on which notice is given to the operator.

Licences issued by other licensing authorities

Applicants who hold a driver or operator licence issued by another licensing authority, must not
assume that their application will automatically be granted. Only applicants who are considered
to be fit and proper by Blackburn with Darwen Council, having regard to the criteria laid out in
this policy, will be granted licences.

Hearings

Hearing with notice — Where a committee/panel is to be convened to consider whether or not
a person is “fit and proper”, notice of the time and date for the committee/panel will be given
ahead of the date listed, in order to allow the person to seek independent lega! advice and to
attend and be represented at the hearing.

Ex-parte hearing — Where a committee/panel is convened as a result of sensitive information
being received by the Council, an assessment will be undertaken in balancing a person’s right to
a fair hearing, against whether or not it is in the public interest to hold the hearing ex-parte.

Appeals

Any applicant refused a licence has the right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days
of the notice of refusal.

Anyone aggrieved by the Council's decision to suspend or revoke their licence, or to impose
additional conditions on their licence, has a right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court within 21
days of the decision notice.

Pagé 30



APPENDIX 2

CONDITIONS ATTACHED TO DRIVERS LICENCES

1.

Licensed drivers must inform the council within 48 hours of any of the following:

(a) arrest and release or charge for any sexual offence, any offence involving dishonesty or
violence or any motoring offence

(b) cautions administered to him by the police,

{c) convictions for criminal offences,

{d) convictions for motoring offences,

(e} penalty points recorded on his statutory driving licence

Licensed drivers must maintain a subscription to the online DBS update service throughout the
licensed period. If they do not subscribe or allow their subscription to lapse, they must produce
a new enhanced DBS every six months,

If there is a change to the information recorded on the registered DBS certificate, they must
produce a new enhanced certificate and register that one with the update service.

Licensed drivers must:

(a) behave in a civil and orderly manner, be appropriately dressed and take reasonable
precautions to ensure the safety of persons conveyed in the vehicle;

(b) not play music except with the consent of the hirer;

(c) when they have agreed or have been hired to be in attendance with the vehicle at an
appointed time and place, shall, unless delayed or prevented by sufficient cause,
punctually attend with such vehicle at that time and place;

(d) never carry more than the number of passengers stated on the vehicle licence:
(e} not carry any other passengers in the vehicle without the consent of the hirer:
(f) Never conceal any licence plate from public view whilst the vehicle licensed:
(9) notify the Council, in writing, of any change of home address within 14 days:
(h) notify the Council, in writing within 72 hrs of any change of operator

(i)  Any property left in the vehicle must be recorded and handed to the Private Hire Operator
or Hackney Carriage proprietor for safe keeping.

Licensed drivers must inform the council, within 7 days of any change to their health which could
impact on their ability to meet the group 2 standard i.e. giddiness, fainting, blackouts, epilepsy,
strokes, multiple sclerosis, Parkinson’s disease, angina, coronaries, high blood pressure,
arthritis, disorder of vision, mental illness, alcoholism, drug taking, the loss of the use of a limb
or the permanent loss of a limb.

The above list does not include all of the conditions that must be reported and are only
included as examples. Drivers who are in doubt about whether or not their health
condition is one that should be reported must consult their doctor.

Temporary conditions, other than recurrent ones, not expected to last longer than three months,
such as a sprained ankle or broken arm, need not be reported.

If the licensed vehicle is constructed so as to carry luggage, when requested by any person
hiring or seeking to hire the vehicle, the driver shall:

(a) convey a reasonable quantity of luggage,
(b) afford reasonable assistance in loading and unloading,
(c) afford reasonable assistance in removing it to or from the entrance to any building, station

or place at which he may take up or set down such a person.
The driver of a private hire or hackney carriage vehicle provided with a taximeter shall:
LIQ 403

Page 31 Page 10of 2



(a) as soon as the vehicle is hired by distance, and before beginning the journey, ensure that
the word ‘"HIRED' is visible on the face of the taximeter until the end of the hiring;

(b) Ensure that taximeter is properly illuminated throughout any part of the hiring during the
hours of darkness and also at any other time at the request of the hirer

Licensed drivers must produce a group 2 medical certificate completed by a registered medical
practitioner on first application, at age 45, then every five years until age 65 and thereafter
annually, unless the driver is also the holder of a valid PSV or HGV.

For information
Smoking in private hire vehicles

It is an offence under Section 7 (2) of the Health Act 2006 to smoke inside a hackney or private
hire vehicle. The penalty for this offence is £200. The person who has control of the smoke free
vehicle, would commit a further offence under Section 8 {4) - allowing smoking to take place in
a smoke free place. The maximum penalty for this offence is £2,500.

Carriage of guide, hearing and assistance dogs

Licensed drivers are required to carry guide, hearing and assistance dogs accompanying
disabled people and to do so without any additional charge. If you fail to comply with this duty
without holding the required medical exemption certificate, you will be guilty of an offence and
liable for a fine of up to £1000.

LIQ 403

Page 32 Page 2 of 2



“UBWUONAUT JO 103

uewsQ paiies
110¢ Udy 8 U0 Jaquialy 2ANNIX3 Aq paroidde suoisiasl / Juswpuswe i
(abeubis 1o0p a1 Q1/H/T pasiAal) £00Z (MdY 0T UO Iaquidly dANNIDXT AQ paaosdde UOISIASY / JUSWIPUSWIE [,E
£66T UdIel ywiz Uo p3y saniwwo) qns Buisuasdn ayy Jo bunssw e je panosdde juswpuawe p,7
£66T Jaqua1das O£ uo piay 2aniwwo) gns Buisuadr ay3 Jo Gupssw e je paaoidde Juswpuawe |
166T |iHdy »TT uo pley aaniwwo) gns buisuadi ayj Jo bupnssw e je pasosdde sy

SpJepue3s 1°0°'W 03 UONIPPE Ul 1591 SIYSA B3 JO SJUSWS(T

JUsWpuswy Wiy
|lenuely bunsa| juswaddng

S9|DIYDA BJIH 2eAlld @ sebeliie) AsudpeH Jo buisuaol] sy

TEINAGY HD 1030

Zm_3w_<h_
Nan mw_ oV q

Page 33




Page 34



*921yaa ay) Jo soueseadde sy spaye Ajpsiaape
UAym abewep 104 yomiuled |eusa)xe 3y auwex3

QUVANYLS XHOMAQOS 30 ¥ XIAN3ddY 335

‘pauadeo Ajny uaym ade|d u; plRyY a:e

‘pauado Ajny uaym soejd ul s1o0p S100D JBYY INSUD 0 SAeIIS ¥I34D Joop (e Joayd
3L ploy 03 |1ej yaIym sdess 3ayd JooQ '
) , "(s2j0N 235) seale 3say) Jo uopdadsul
N0 PaLLED 3q J0U ||IM 3583 Y] ‘uondadsul Jadosd 10§ MOJ|E 0) UONIPUOD UBSD B|qENS
10J SWaY JO UoneULeXS [Ny & JuaAa.d 0] UCIIPUOCD £ Ul 3q IsnW Juawpedwod auiBua By pue SPIYRA
B yons ul uonpadsul Joj pajuasald Si SPIYaA ayy JI "uondadsul Jado.id Bunuaaasd uoeuwRIUG) ‘1 ay) JO BPISIAPUN 343 HIOMAPO] BY] JO JOMBIE BY |
S310N NOILDIC[3Y 404 NOSY3IY NOILD3dSNI 40 GOHL3INW
FTOIH3A FH1L 40 HOTHIIX3

aoeyd axyey [ym uonsadsul Juiof e asaym ‘uorIss BUISU3DIT S,[I2UN0) Y]
e aaueysul 34y i3 ul pinoys Asyy a3enbapeul si 1A 43 JO PIEPUES [[EIIA0 B} JLY] UOIUIdO BYy3 JO S| 13593 Y3 2IdYM

Page 35

TT



‘Adde |ns

$%7242 Y6y JaYI0 (| “P3IRAINIESP IO PAEAITIR UG
aney (s)yby asianal ayy JeY) 3PIYaA 3Y) JO JBALP 3}
01 Buigeatpur jo s)qeded uonisod B YINS Ul paIy S asn
S1) 10) PapIA0Id YDJIMS U3 JRU3 HIBYD UBL] 0S SI SIYY 4]
‘243x0 ue se payy subi Buisiaaal aAey S9IIYaA 3Wos

BuisusdI] Wouy pauieqo aq |1m uoyuydo o,z

S31O0N

3PIYA 3Y) 40 JB31 3Y) O)
uoneuiwn)y ajenbape apinoid Jou SIOP IO NJBSY] P/

po1d8|esap

S| Jeab 35189A81 UBYM UO SulelIRS PaYIRIas S| Jeab
S49A2S uYM JUB)| 2ym Apeals e uey) Jaylo spwe I/

padiedw s| uopouny

S} Jey) paleJoualap Jo pabewep os *3') ‘uoRpuod
uea|> u) 1o Japso Bunjiom poob u) jou ‘ayajdwiodul s g2
pajoefas si seab astanas uaym Sjesado Jou seop e/
ypoiym by buisionasy £

!|le) e SaNISUoD
5109J9p |eas Joop woly buisue sabpa dieys Auy

‘Ires

B S3a)NJIISU0I “INJD0 Aew uonenauad 1ayem/ue jeyy
JuaIX2 3Y) 0] wiom 10 pabewep si Yoiym |eas Joopy 9
Buissiw sped 10 payoen  qg

ssadwing eas 10 Juoly paundas AjRjenbapew eg

NOILIAC3Y ¥Od NOSVIYH

BPIYSA BU) JO L1ed) 3Y) 03 ucReUWN]|]
s1enbape sapiaoud pue pan Apmss s1 (p

by auym Apears e sy (9

uoRIpuod JB3D
u pue Japio bBupjiom poof uy ‘ayedwod s (g

pa322|3s sI 1esb asiasal uaym sajerado (e

ISAIY3A B Jo Jsunejnuewd sy
Aq pany 461 Buisiaaas A1aAd Jeuy ¥3aUD £'T

*SJuUBsqe 10 5SBUAS00| ‘abewep sNoLas 10y

Joop AI3AD 0] sjeas Jaqgnu sy auiuexy 9'1

IPIY3A 3y
0] paxy Ajaindas aue pue J2plo poob u) aie
siaduing 1eas pue Jucdy 243 38y} 24nsug §'T

NOILD3IdSNI 40 AOHL3INW

‘PIUOC)) FTOIHIA FHL 40 UOHALXT 'T

Page 36



SMOpUIM
Y1 ybnouyy ajqisiA aq 3snw Jabuassed pue JaAup 3yl

‘paniuwLad 3q JoU JIM JUN JSYSEM J1eal Y] JO [BADLIDY
*3IIYSA BY] JO MOPUIM 1231 3Y) 0) P31l

{s)aysem pue Jadim USDSPUIM B YIIM painioeinue
S1 jey3 apyaa e 03 saldde Ajuo uogoadsu) siup

S310N

M3IA P2INSA0 1T

Jodim
343 Yum uoduUNfuoDd Ul MOpUIM 183l DY) Je3]d 0)
pinbi) y6noua apiaoxd Jou S30p JBYSEM MOPUIM Y]

*1E3s SIDALIP B}

WwoJy Jeal au) 0] MalA ajenbape ue Jamip ay) a6
0] A|IDAIID242 MOPUIM JE3J B} Je3[D J0U SIO0P YIIYM
Jo pajesouslap ‘Buissiw ‘aundasun ape|q Jadim v

Mma)A 3jenbape ue saaup a3 aab
0] YBnous mopuim Jeal aul Jo eale ue Jaao 3esado
10U S30p J2AUP 3] JO 35N 3y] Joj pajjejsul Jodim e

UO paya)ims
uaym ajesado Ajjeonewwoine Jou saop Jadim e

J2ALIp AWy
0] 9|qISsadeU) Jo Bulssi (03U02 JaLSEM JO Jadim e

NOILIACIY YOJ NOSYIY

o1

mopuim Jabuassed Juol) pue JSALP Y} }IRYD)

J2YSEM MOPUIM 1831 U3 JO UOIDUNY 3Y3 H3YD

MOpUIM
1231 3y} ypm PRucI Sy pue spejq Jadm au) Jo

6 SSAUDAIIIBYD pue AJLNDaS ‘UDIPPUOI 3Y) dUNWexs

8

q8

eg

MOpUIM 1231 31} JO ease Jdams auy
310U pue ssadim ay) pue siaysem Iy aessdo

NOLLJ3dSNI 40 AOHL1dW

"PIU0)} FTOIHIA FHL 40 YOI LX3

11

Page 37

81



*W10j Aue uj geD Jo AsuydeH ,Ixeq, piom U}

apnpu) 0] J0U S awWweu Yans Inq ‘10)esado ayy Jo Iweu
ssaulsng ayj ajesodlodu; 0] ubis ay) ‘uonedynads

pue ubisap wuojun S)IPUNOY 3Y) 0} JPIY3A 3] JO
Ssio0p Juod) ay) uo ubis e Aedsip jjeys Joyaudold sy,

1ey3 a.4nbas suoiypuod spouno) ybnoiog ayl

S3ALON

JAVN 38 01 SI 3DNIOIT FTOIH3AA JUIH ALVAINd
V 304 NOILYOI'lddY TVILNI NV J43IHM NOLL)3IdSNI ¥Od4 3LN3IS3Hd SITOIHIA O1 A1ddV LON S30a NOILO3S SIHL

subjs Aeydsip oy ainped

sufiis Aejds)p 03 a1njied

subis Aejdsip o1 aunjied

(*219 Buana)

Jo 9215 ‘ubis Jo uosod *a°1) paquosald Jauuew
ayy u Jaquinu suoydaey s Jo/pue Auedwo)
24IH 21eAld U3 JO weu auy Aejdsip 03 ainjied

NOILLJ3C[3Y Y04 NOSYIY

smopuim Jabuassed Jeal uo 9poz
PV Yeay ayy yym uerdwod subjs Suows on

"3PIYSA 3UJ Jo 3PISYO a3 uo [pued aysoddo

23 uo pue toop sabuassed apis Jeau Jeas ay) uo
padejdsip aq Isnw subis au) SaPIUDA 241y SjeAud
se pasuad)| (3dyan Jabuassed NIN) SAdIW UO

*S100p Jeal ay) Jo sjpued Jaddn auy

uo padeldsip aq jjeys aquinu ajejd ayy osje pue
‘PIuaA a1y 23eand e se apiIyaA ay) BuiAynuapt
‘Ipuno) a3 Aq paaoidde (,AjuQ Bunjoog
P3JUBAPY,, X3} ay] pue ,B]IYaA aJIH 31eAld
pasuaan,, 3xa3 a4} aAey |leys Yyiym) aonou JAujA

*|Dune?) 3y Aq paaoidde
asoy3) yum Ajduiod A3u) Jey] 2unsus 0) 3PRIYaA aY)
Jo s100p juody a3 uo paiedsip subis syl sulwexg

NOILD3IdSNI 40 QOHL1INW

SNOIS FT1OIH3A JUIH ILVAIYd — SNDIS

1 A4

[4



JAVYKW 39 OL ST FONIOIT FTOIHIA FAUIH JLVAIYC ¥O ADVIHHEYD
AINMIVH V¥ 404 NOLLVOI'TddV TVLLNI NV J43HM NOLLD3dSNI 30d4 Q31N3S3dd SIATOIHIA OL AlddV LON S300 N

{s=2j0N 295) "uonisod Juaujwoid
e U1 paxy st ajed ay) e ainsug
‘paxy Af24n22s S1 I 1BYY ANSUD 0 J|IIYIA

*12014J0 pasUowIne ue Aq ‘uoisod juauiuosd a3 01 panuy st 1euy Aieid ay) saunuexy '
pasowsal Ajsea Buiag jo ajgeded 2q pinoys pue IjgqISIA B Ul panlj JoU S1 .10 YDA Y} 0]
AjJea)d aq o3 uonisod & w1 IPIYSA Y] JO JOLSIXS A} 03 PRINIIS AjRenbape Jou sI yaum ajeid v e *3j0163] Apes s |1e3ap aouady
paxyy Aj21n29s aq |jeys apiyaa abewaed ASuydey/Hpiyaa 2Y3 Jey) aInsuR pue 1eam DAISSIIXD JO
any aeaud e se 3PiysA ay) Burynuap! (UG ajpba) Alleap jou Jaquinu sbewep jo subis Joj IIYaA YY) JO Jeal Y
ay) Aq pansst Jopjoy pue 3jed 35uad) SPIYSA 3YL  0ua3)) yim )eid e 1o aeid pabewep v T 0} paxy a1ejd 20Ul apPIYDA ay) Padsul T°€
S310N NOIL)3A(3IY HO4 NOSYIYH NOILLD3dSNI 40 AOHL13W

$S31V1d IDN3IDIT £

Page 39



‘PARPUELS USiIg JULIND 2Y) 0] SLLUOJUOD
Ay ayy Jeyy ylew s unpegnuew Jqiba) Apesp
e saiued 31 4t paydanoe aq Ajuo |im plnowa

*Aj9Jes 1035 0} uoisiaosd
ou SI 213Y) 2U3YMm S3snqui = uoidwaxg

‘pajdanoe

3Q JOU ||IM X2 U0 UO SjeIpel PIod pue [9315
JoXiw Yy IPIUA 343 0] paNY SauA3 Byl Jo Jied
2U0 Sayew pue uoyipucd pocb uj sI 214 aleds
3yl JI UDAD “159] BY) (1) DI0413Y] ISNLU JIIYDA
BYL 'SSOUEISLUNDID PajiWI| Ul pasn 3¢ Ajuo

ued 3] asuis ‘padacie aq jJouued asAyfjlsaym
aleds auo jo GuAued ayy ‘(Ald ssoi pue |eipes
*B*a) syuswasinbay |eb3) Jua.und o3 sWwIoyuod
Y3Iym uoijeuiquiod B uj S3IAY SeY IPIYaA e )T

S31ON

"3|qeadiatasun
1 sIBpual J Jey) JUINX2 YINs O)
W |2aym aleds papolsip 1o pabewep v

‘[oaym
aseds ayy 21ndas AlopeISHeS 0} aInjed

YA Y)Y YUM 30RIq [9aYM
Jo/pue yoel 3jqeuns e apiaocud o3 alnped

=170
dJeds paje|ut JOA0 10 13pUn AjRAISS30XT

"sa1A3 jeba))) asimiayjo
1o piepug)s qns ‘ulom ‘pabeweq

"UOIPINIISUCD 10 32IS
JUIAYIP © JO S| YoIyM A Y "9PIYRA
23 yum papiaoad jou [gaym sleds v

NOILI3A(IY ¥Od NOSYIY

*abewsep 10 UopoSIP Jo subis
Aue 10} [2aym aseds au) Jo Wil 3y} ¥IBYD 9'F

-uonisod

102102 Y} Ul paundas Apadoad s) [paym

au} jey) ainsua 03 (RaAep BulNdas Jejuis
10) 1poelg Buixy [paym aseds ayy YU §'v

*13pJo Bupjiom poob u) aue Aayy
1eY) 24NSud 03 YA 34} yym papiacid
20B4q |IBYM pue ¥Ief ay] sulwex] p'p

"paleyu] Japun o pajepyu
19A0 AjSNOLI3S 10U S1 1A 3U 8L ¥I3YD) €%

*JI2IYDA BYY 0F Paxy uUsym SaIA}

410§ sjuawaiinbai eb63| e yum saydwiod
) 1BY) SINSUD pUR 1E3M DAISSIIND

10 abewep Jo subis 10) |9aym aseds

3y} 0) PaNY S YdIym IA} 3y} dulwex3 Z'p

UOINPU0D 0} J342J — JaAes adeds  *(sa10N

39S) S|S9UM peoJ 3Y) 0} Pajy IsoY) se

UOIIINIISUCD puB BZIS DIBS BY) JO S| [FAYM
aleds ayy uo papinord 324y 3yl Jeyl aInsul T'p

NOLLI3dSNI 40 AOHLINW

TIIHM JUVdS ANV STHAL ¢

Page 40



*sabernie) AsuyoeH o) saydde Ajuo uondas sy

"3)2 pooj Juiy
‘abebbn| siabuassed ajeuweiucd pinod s|eUeWw a3y

'spoob Jabuassed Joy pasn jou s
1004 ataym uondwaxa szdiyap abepied Aswoey Jog

S31O0N

Bujaq ale Aoy 32IY2A 3yl Jo yew
uoijensibas ayy ypm paysew jou sdwey

sdwels Jieyd [aym
3)qeyns yum paddinba Jou apIysA

‘uonisod Y1), 3y3
Ul paindas Ajiadoud Buisg woly pij aud
JuanaLd yoym spoddns Jooq aandaeq

wisiueyaw Sujuado anpsleg

*9b6e66n) Jo abeic)ys ay) Japuly pinom 10
‘pasnaas Alslenbape jou S B0 10 5j00) Auy

"3PIYSA Y Ul paLIEd

34 JOU |jeys |euajew SAIS0.10D 10 Sjqewiue))
Aue 1o |013ad ‘|10 Jo abrI0)S 3Y3 J0J SiBUIRUCD)

"UIIBL) palols
abeb6n| a6ewep Jo 10s pjnod yaym 100q ay)
ul ‘232 ysiqqns ‘sseasb ‘yip Jo suoiejnWNIDY

*Buriaaod 100)) s3enbapeut

*p1j d0 sjpued
Buim Jauu) “Jooq ay) Jo ooy B4) 0] UOISOLIC)

NOILOACIY 04 NOSYIY

qz

eL

as
€9

Uy paiied ate Aay)

3By} 3DIyaA ayy Jo yJew uonensibal
Y3 yum payewr Ajqia) Apuasveunsd
aie Aau) pue sdwel JieysEaym ajgesins
yam paddinba si apiyaA 3y3 3eyi yoayd

"uojsod ,payl, Y3 Ul 51 3 UBYM P Sy
poddns Ajzjenbape wseydraw Buuado
pue spoddns 3004 2(J1YaA AU 12Y3 9D

*SWa)|
Jay3o pue 5|00} 3500 J0J J00q WI3YD

"(jos32d ‘10 *6°3) speusiew
SAIS01103 JO 3jqewwel Aue JO SIBUIRIU0D
40 2auasaud 3y 104 3009 Y3 RIRYD

*J0RU0D OJU) w0 Aew 2Bebbn|

yoiym adeuns Aue jo Bulwieys 1o 039
‘193))] ‘aseasb ‘)snp ‘yip Jo suonenwnIde
10 100q 3y} JO JOUIIU) 2Y] SuIwex]

"100Q 3y} Ul palols

abebbn| o3 uonda0ld ajenbape siayo pue
uonipuad poob u) S| 3 1ey) pue Bulaaod
Jooy j00q )enbape S| 313y Jewyy ainsul

‘uopesauad J91EM JO UOISOLIOD
40 3DUBPIAD Jo} JOLRNUY J00q 3L Buiwex]

NOILO3IdSNI 40 AOHLIANW

LS

¥'S

£'a

(4]

T's

1004

Page 41



S310N

*LUSIUBYIDW YI3NJI A Ul JeaM
sjusucdwod jeajueylaw 10 s6eyes)| ping

WYSAS Bujjood auyy
wioyy 53e3| Jo Jojeipel Aj2enbapeu) uy

'sbuunow aubus
PaIRIOLBISP A[BMSSE0XA 10 2INJ3sSUT

I[2q uej
pajeiold)ap 10 paysnipe Ajaalioow uy

*paJndas
Aj@enbape j0u s Yoiym Aloyeq v

*SHE| [I0 DAISSBOX]

NOILI3A(3Y 04 NOSVIY

‘uopesado
PBLI0I JOJ SWISIUBRLIBW YN Y3 332D 9'9

*syeal Aue Jo subis J0j waisAs Buljood
SY) ¥I2YD pue 3IYA Y 03 PAINIAS
Apadoud s J0jeIpR] 3U) 1BL) BINSUT] §'9

‘uopeIoLaIap JO
subis 104 sbugunow auwbua ay] saulwexy +'9

*UONRIoLANIP Jo/pue Jusunsnipe
P10l JO SubBls 10} 313q Uey B YD £'9

‘uoisod Ui paindas
Apadoad s) Asaneq ay) Jeyy aunsu3y z'g

's)ed| |10 Jo subis 103 Juawpedwod
aujbua ay) Jo uonzadsuy| jensia e 1o Aule) 1°9

NOILLI3dSNI 40 QOHL1IW

AINIWLIHEYdWOD INIONI 9

Page 42



*YJO0LS UJoMm J0 3sco| ‘Buissiw s jeped
yoingo a3 uo volsiaoad dis nue ayy

*J21SILI-BP US2IDSpUIM/ID)eaYy aAD3)Rd

"saydIms Joop JyBi| Jouaul Ayned
“J2Inpejnuewt sy
Aq pany aze Aayy assym a|qedndde Ajuo a1e (3 pue (q "Yaums b Jouu Ayned

"Bumy 6y Jousyur Ayjned

*SISB( 12aS Jeas palndes Ajsjenbapeu]

's1abuassed
03 Joddns Jayo Jo/pue uoppuod Jcod
B U] 24 YIIYM SIS3 )Deq JO SUOIYSNhD Jeas

‘uloy 1o
PIIOY “LIOM A[RAISSAXD ST Loum AlRlsjoydn

*A1aysjoydn

10 s33d1ed ayy 03 Bujuieys 10 *D12 sugep

‘19331 “)SNP JO UOREINLLINDIE BAISS3IXD UB
U3IM LIORIPUOD AMIP € U) SI YIIYM 3PIYSA Y

SALON NOILI3ACIY HO4 NOSVYIY

L

29

qs

Bg

‘lepad yonp su3 uo adey diys ue syt

*13pi0 Bupiom Aioyoessies un si 31 18y
3INSUD 03 1SIW-3P UIIISpUIM/Ijeay
3y} Jo uopesado ayy H/YD

“Jsinpejnuewl suy

19 PaNY J! sSYdIMS pajesado Joop ay) pue
YoUMmS jenuew ay) y3oq ‘apiuaA ay) uiim
WBif Jouur BY) Jo uopelado ay) }I3YD

*2INJ3S S| Ise( Jeas
a3 Jel]] =1nsla 0] sjeas Ieal 3] sulluexy

*siabuassed

0} poddns Jadoad 1ayo pue uonipuod
poob ui a1e S1521 IR pueR SUOIYSND
135 ||e Jey] 2INSUI ©) IPIYDA Y3 UIYIM
s)eas Jabuassed auy Jo yoes auwexy

*wi0}
10 pajoy ‘uiom Jou aie Asuy Jey) alnsua
03 papiaosd Assgsjoydn sy} supwex3

*1EIM DAISSOXD 10 Bupes

‘yse apasebn ‘sugop jeiausb ‘Jan)

UIp “1SNp JO SUOIEINLINIIE 0] JIYaA 3L}
apisty Aiysjoydn pue Jooy) 3y auwexy

NOILLJ3dSNI 40 AOH13INW

FT1OIHAA 40 HOIY3ALNI

L

L£L

9L

LA

(A

L

Page 43



‘panddezu ale A3 aunsua
1593 ay3 Jo asodand su) Joy pasesjal aie YOO Py JI

‘uopesado jo prepuels s o) Ajdwod
ISNW SMOPUIM JLIO3[2 WIM PNl SAPIYRA

S31ON

*SJUBLIWIEIUOD JE|ILLIS IS0 10 poo)
15EM "Nwon Buipnpui sjpws ajgerdsaceun

*JE35 S JaAlp 33
WOy Jeas DY) 0] MBIA 1eajd e aaIb Jou
Op YoIum SIOLIHW DAIPDIJDP L0 a1ndasu ‘Bulssiiy

"0 DY) WOy
sloop Jeas 213 Jo Buuado ayy Juaaaad
UYaiym sajpuey pabewep 10 Buissiiy
'sajpuey JoLul
a3 Buisn apisul ayl woy) pauado
94 Jjouued jey) 1oop tobuassed Jeal y

"PISIEI JO PRISMO| A[ISES BQ 0] SMOPUIM
MOJ|E JOU Op JBU] SWISIUBYIBLU JSPUIM MOPUIM

*J9]B3Y UD3.0S 183l MIRSP ¥

NOILJ3[3H YOJ NOSY3IYH

3PIYDA
I a3 apisul 9jqeadnou sinopo jueseajdun

SAISS30X2 OU Ble LYY JBWI /YD) 7T/

"3171Y3A 3y} JO IS Jeau pue
TT  Jou3)ulay) 0 pany sl Jow e 1YY YD T

qo01

"3PIYSA 3} JO JoLRIUI AY)

(YA

WoJ) SI00p Jead ||e Jo uonesado sy WD3YD OT°Z

B0T
‘pasiel Jo pasamo| A|Inj 3q 0} SMOpUIM
12 mojje A3yj Jey)y Buunsua swsjueyasw
6 JBpuUim MOpum ||e Jo uopelsdo syl YYD

‘Apadoad

Bujuonouny sy )1 1ey) aunsus 03 Jajeay
u3213S 121 A} JO uoiesado ayy ¥oeLd

NOILLD3dSNI 40 AOHLINW

("Pau0d) IT1DIH3A 40 YOTHILNI

B'L

Page 44



(so21yan abelued

Aawpey 103 uonedIyRAds pafieIap 104 JB3PI0Oq
Siy} jo Jead Je ucpesypads [euoippe 93s)
*s3PIYBA abeue) AsuyoeH 03 saldde Auo uoipas siyL

12Ap au} Buipnpu) Jou siabuassed jybia jo abelued
3Y} 10 pasUa|| 2q 0] papUIU) IO PISUIIN| B LYDIym
sapRIyaA 0} sqeddde Ajuo a1e §T°Z pUe $1°/ SUORDAS

S3LON

‘smesedde auy) yyum paddinba jou apiyap
‘pPa1e21pu)

Ajeg)d jou aie uonesado Jo sueaw 3y
*SIX2 Yy 03 wde(pe Jou ale Aayl
‘apisino

10 SpIsul 3yl oy uo pade|dsip

jou ale ,ATNO 3SN ADNIDYIWI YO,
40,4000 ADNIDYIW3,, SPIom 3yl

"Ybly WSz ueyy ssa

NOLLD3[3Y ¥04 NOSYIY

91

ST

4!

avT

ept

“PIYRA
Ul Jieyojzaym e Bupndas Joj snjeledde auy
yIm paddinba s) 3dIyaA syl 1WINIRYD  9T'Z

*lo0p 23 Jeau Jo
uo pajedipul Apeap aue shixe Asuabiswe
3l Joj uoesado JO suesw Sy JIBYI YI/YD ST/

Ixs

12y 03 Juadelpe ,AINO 35N ADNIDYIW3

d04,, 10,4004 ADNIDHIWA.,

Spiom 33 ‘spisino pue apisul ay)

309 uo ‘ybly wwsz ueyy ssa) Jou SISRI)

u) ‘paxjiews ALEIID AIR JIIYIA Y Uo
papiroid s3ixe Aouablows e jey ansuz BT/

NOILL)3dSNI 40 GOHLINW

"PIU0D) ATOIHIA 40 YOTYHILNI

Page 45



“S)HI3YD

30ds uo s JuSWaNoug Aq paulopad
3q [|M UONDUNY SIYL “IBUILRXT IPIYIA 3Y) Aq

pauado 3q J0u ISAW Y Piy IS4 Iyl
suid Ayoges 9

{(papnput 2q os|e pjnoys spunom
shouas 1o} ajeudoldde Buuaaod

3|14215 B JoU Ji :3|B)S 3] ‘sjqissod

J1 ‘pinoys siyy) abepueq Jeinbuery aug

(0°d'g £1°ON pue g-oN sBuissaig
plepuels 2y a1 3|qejiRAR Ajjuaiind
sBuissaip ajqeyns Jo sajdwexs fwag x
weQT "xoudde) buissaip pajedpawun
35 PAZIS WNPaLW BuQ

‘sBuissaup
aAIsaype 2)us)s paddeim Ajlenpiaipul 9

‘a’N

(p

{>

(q

(e

-:Buimoi|o) 3y} 1583 Je UIeIUoD 0] Y pie IsH1Y

S3.LON

*uonedyads
SUNO2) By 0 WIOUOD 10U Op SIUSjU0)

‘Ul paused buiaq
S| 31 IIYA 33 Jo ylew uonensibal
SU] YIIm paxyJew Jou 1y ple 354

"SIIYBA BY) Ul W p1e 354l 3y Jo uoysod

ay) bunpeoipul padejdsip Ajesp ubis oN

"1y pie 3s41y e apiaoid 0] anjied

NOIL)3(3™ W04 NOSYIY

{s=j0u

995) uoneayads SPIUNOD) YY) Ul UMOp
pie| sjuawanbal ayj 0] WLIOUOI SJUSIU0D
3y Jey3 2Insua 0] 1 pie Is1Y 8L RI8YD

‘w
paLued Buiag s) 3 1eud SIY3A 33 JO e

uofjessibas ayy yum paxew Aqiba| pue
Apuaueunsad s) 3py ple 351 3Y3 Jeu3 JPaYD

‘OPIYaA 3}

UL 3 Pie 1544 3L JO uoledd) ay) apiyaa
ey} Jo J3AUp Y] ueyy uosiad o Aue
0) Bunedpul 3IYsA 3y} Jo oLz BY) Ul
pae(dsip Ajeap ubis e si 21ay) Jey) JoayDd

"SPIYRA By Ul
pSpiAosd 11 pie 351y € S| 2J3u) Jey ¥23yD

NOILD3dSNI 40 GOHLIW

A1) QIV 1Suld

3AVI 39 OL SI 3DN3DIT IT1DIHAA FUIH ILVATHd YO IDVINEYD
AIAN)OVH V 404 NOLLVYOITddVY TVILINI NV J¥IHM NOLLOIdSNI 403 Q31IN3ISTHd STT1OIHIA OL A1ddV LON SI0A NOILDIS SIHL

¥'8

£'8

a8

Page 46



"(s4a520 ZOTT
SINUIW) Z6°0T"T JO UOISIISP 3310 qnS Buisuadyy
e Buimoj|oy jeuoizdo awedaq siaysinBunlixg a4 'g'N

‘pieoqusep ay) uo paiedsip Alesp
51 Jaysinbunxs a1y syl Jo uonisod 2y} ey 3unsug

*9AIRYS ulewia) 0] bupeys senbas
aunbar [pm adAy Japmod Alp au Jo sisusinbuipg

S310N

"3[21yaA ay3 jo uonesnsibal ayy
yum paspew Aiqibe) pue ‘Apusuewsad
J0U S| YyHYm Jusinbuipe any v

<aysinbunxs
pabewep 10 Aydwae ‘Buney y

"S[2IYDA Y UIYIM uoRisod
9|qIssa0oe Ajpead pue snondidsuod
B Ul JOU SI Y2Iym Jaysinbupe aiy v

‘plepue)s spouno)d ayy 03 ‘uLojuod
JoU S20p Yoiym Jaysinbupxe aay v

NOILOILIY Y04 NOSYIY

*B2IUSA 33 Jo Jaquinu uonessibay
Y3 yum payew Ajqiba) Apusueunad
SI Jaysinbunxa a1y 3y) JaYIBYM YIYD +'6

*Aldadosd Buiuonouny 3 jusaaud o) se

pabewep uaaq sey Jo Ajdwa j0uU S Y Jeyy
ainsua 03 Jaysinbue a1y ay3 auiwex3 £'6

‘adA) sspmod Aup e Byz'z Y3 jo
3¢ 3SNW ) paLsed s) Jaysinbunxa aly e J| 6

*|leuondo
s1 IaysinBunxs a4y e Jo abeuied sy 16

NOILD3IdSNI 40 AOHL13INW

SHIHSINONILLX3 YId

Page 47



*suoljeayytoads

ay} yum Ajdwods ues apdiyaa

ay} jey) ainsua o} saijddns ajaiyaa ay) pue
Buisuasi yum Apisay ynsuod asesjd ‘yey)
8[21YaA aAneuld)je Aue Buiseyosind oy Joud

‘sBunsew

1e8s pue s|lelpuey yojeuw o} Jnojod A)IqISIA
-ybiy Bunsenuoo e u) payybyybiy eq |leys
sjieJpuey ||y "‘paplaosd asoym sdajs jo asn sy}
ai1e))oe) pue siabuassed (Buipusiul) 1sisse 0)
Se 0S sIoop ssadde Jabuassed [je u) suosod
ajeudoidde ui papy aq 1snw sjieipueH

& [v7e]
Jo Wbeam wnwiuiw e Buipoddns jo sjqedes

aq Isnw sdajs ||y "yBiay Jooy jeulsjul ay) 0}
dn |9A8] peOJ BY} WO WWOSEZ MDA payy q
lleys da)s sjeipawus)ul Ue WUWIQOE Spaadxe
3joIyaA sU} Jo JyBiay Jooyy [eusaju) ay) a8y

:SMOJj0} SE
ssalba/ssalbu) pie o) papirold aq |leus
sdajs ‘g|o1yan ay) Jo eaie 1abusassed
8} Ojul JOOp SS820B UleW 8y} 1y

- sjiedpuey pue sdayg ‘JybieH 4004 (9

‘A)nowyip anpun Aue
INOYNM JSuUBW [BULICU B Ul £|98.)
ssed ueo jnpe ue ybnoiyy wwooy
jJo wnwiuiw e aq ||eys ssed o)
pajoadxs aq ued rabuassed e yoiym
ybnoay deb Auy ‘Juswpedwos
JsBuassed Jeal sy} Jo sued ||e woly
a|qeyoeal ‘suoljonysqo Aue Jo aal
aq |[eys }xa JO sueal ay] ‘suonen)is
Aouabiawa 1oy JsAup By puiyaqg
Juswpedwos Jsbuassed ay) woly
}IX© JO SUBaW 2 JO WNWIUIL B SABY
lleys sjoiyaa ay] sjuawaliinbay
)x3 pue Anju3 jessusn (g

‘6019 splepuels
ysnug yum Aidwos jsnw sBuiyyy pue
sdwey 'sb) 00¢ Jo peo| Bupom ajes
wnuwiuiw e aaey ysnw dwel psjiejsul
ay] Juswsalinbal siy) 19sw 0)
pawaap aq pinom U0(}08s a|qeAowal
uo-ppe uy ‘Aojdap o0} Ases
pue JyBremyBll aq pue sjolyen ay) uy
pajjeisul Ausueulad aq jsnw yoiym
dures ssasoe aje|d ajbuis Jieyopsym
paubisap — asodind y :dwey

- juswdinb3g ssaooy Jieysjaym (v

"INO|0D Aue aq Aew }l 8SEI Yoiym

Ul ‘ges adA] uopuoT e Ssi 9j2IYsA au)

ssajun ‘¥oe|q 2q }snw ssbepies Asuyoey
pasuoyine ||e Jo inojos Jouaixa ayl {¢

‘leacaddy adA )

3I2I1YaA 3joUM LI pajuelb Ajjuanbasqns

ueaq |jeys abueyd yons ssajun

3JOIUSA 3U] O} IN0 paLed aq |eys |iejap

jo Juswebuenesl 10 UoieIS)E [BINJONYS

‘ebueyo ou ‘Jaqunu xapui uoyedisibal

ajeudoidde ue yum panssi pue yiAQ
yum palsisifbias usaq sey spiyaa eyl (g

‘leaoidde

adA} souis pals)jeun aq pue {(YLAMO3)

leaocaddy adA | a121yep sjoum D3

0} sjoadsal ||e ui AjJdwod pue uoneoyISse|o

L 8AeY (ainjony)s ay) jo ued jesbaju

ue se by ixe} ul-ing e Buiyescdioou)

210j219Y) ) S[2IYBA B|ISSAIIE JIBYD|aaym

e se asn Jo} AjsAlsnjoxa padojaasp

pue paubisap aq }snw abewued Asuyoey e
se |eaocsdde Joj papmiugns qen 1xe] Aaag ()

Page 48

"Juswissasse joedw Ayjiqesip aAlisod

e Buiaey o} uomppe ul suonediivads Gumojjo)
8yl yum Aidwod jsnw asuady Jim Ajuoyine
SIY} Jey) sajaIysA sabeluen AsuyoeH syl

NOILVIIHID3dS IOVINEYDI AINMOVH




‘BfJOU PIBS 3y} JO DIEP By} WIOL SAER HT UM Bale Jiyes) Aue Jo 3010 3l 0] Juas 3G (q)

fwuoy Jeys Aq pasnbad sieinanued ayy uwejuod pue ajels Jo A1ejai33s ayj Aq pancidde uuoy e uo oq (e)

— j1eys jeadde yons Aue ‘9ejs jo Aieainas ay)
Aq papnuiad aspmisuo aq Aew se aAes ‘pue a)els jo Aejaidas auyl o} 1eadde Aet panssy ussq sey S1eayial 53] B JO Jesnya1 3y JO 310U e woym 0} uosiad i

1SS YIYM
186T suoieinbay (3s21) sepyaA J010W 243 Jo (T)8T uonembay yum ssuepiodde v aq |leys jeadde auy uay) ‘6unsal aRIYSA [eRssWWOD JYbi]
pue Jed Joj [enuejy uonaadsuf podsues) Jo AnSiulN SY3 Ylim 8oUepIoIe Ul papadsul Usaq ARY/SBY ‘DARD3JIP 3¢ 0 PUnoj ase YauM “(sHway
1

2y} pue 3IYaA € JO 1adsal Ul eI 1S3) B BNSS! 0] ISNJAJ 0] JAUILLRXS IILSA € JO UOISIDIP Y} UM pausnessip si Joaudoid apiyaa e J

J4NA300YUd STVIddV

Page 49



sabpa Buiprujoud
dieys ypm uojsouos 1o Gunsmi
eayubis j0 a2UBpPIAD SI 8JBY) B b

‘sjaued Apoq ainoasul o paiedal
Aapruo 0 aouapiag sl alay] ‘e ‘¢

*a|21UeA Ay} JO spisiesu ay) ug
Jou s1 Joop Jabuassed ajbuls ‘e ‘g

‘sjeued

Apoq |ews)xs ay} o} abewep
juesyiubis Jo aouapiae S| BJay] e °L

|esnjay 10} UOSEaY

safips Buipnnjoud dieys w Bugnsas UOISOLOD
Jo Bunsru jueoyiubis Jo aouspiAs ou s alay) Jey] b

‘(uoneuiwexs [ensia) 'sjsued Apog amoasu)
‘10 paJiedas Ajapruo jo eduepiAe ou S| a1yl ‘g

‘B|oIYaA
8y} Jo (apisquay) apisIeeU SY) UD SIJoop Jey) Joop
sabuassed auo Ajuo s1 a1al)] as9yMm JBY) BINSUT °Z

'sjaued Apog |eulsixs

ay) o} abewep jueayjubis Jo 93UaPIAB OU ) B4BYL |
=l1ey) ¥08yd

uoljeurwexa Apoq apisdo )

uopjeujwexy

289BUNS |2AJ)

e uo Buipueis 8|21ysA ay] Uyim pajonpuod uondadsu|
uopoadsu)

uonaadsu| jo poyjap

uonoeg sse|9 juoppuo) Apog apisdo) |'g

jlomiuled pue yiomApog Jo uoRIpuos

p,uoa

Aoanos ajesado swsiueydsw

Buyore)Bunoo) el amnsue o) UoREISPISUND
Jaypny usalb aq pINoYs $Y20) pue Sajpuey JOOp
10 eale ejepsww) ay) puno.le ebewep jpued
IS)20| puUE Sa|puey J00Q

*s1s|xa Apealje ey} ajoy Aue abuejua s0

yom £poq ay) ul sajoy ayew o} jJdwape 1ou o
48y Apoq jo subis moys jou

pinoys “Jawud aseq ayy moys pjnoys jeued on
:suesw asueleadde Aiojoejspesg

‘sjaued

Apoq jje jo uonsadsul [ensiA "S1esn pect JBYl0 Jo
Janup ‘sisBuassed ay) 0} ysu |eyusiod e sesod
Jo / pue abewep jo juncwe ajeuaodoidsip
paueisns Bulaey sjaued Apoq alow 1o 3uQ
:suesw juesyub)g

UOHELLICHU|

V XIAN3ddVY

Page 50



"papinoid 8q I1snw (aAoqe pajielsp se) |9aum aleds e ‘||om [2aym aieds B yim painjoejnuew si
sjoiyan ayy J| “Aidde jou |Im jaaym aieds e Aued 0) JuswaiNbal ay) ‘|lam [9aum aleds B JNoyY)Mm painjoBiNUBLL USSQ SBY S[9I4an By} aI8YA\
"8olnep Bujulem / Josuas ainssaid 814} B yum paply 9q OS(e jleys SjoIyaA ay) ainoenuew sy Aq SaJA) Jel UNnJ, Uim paiiy si SjoiyeA B |

'salldde gg ydeiBeled alaym 1deoxe palueo aq |leys [9aym pue a1} e Jo abueyo aAoaye au) ajqeud o] ¥oel pue 8deIq |9sym Y

"paltiedal si [9aym peol |eulblo ay) JS|Iym aINsesLl 9)eIpauLISu|
ue se pasn aq Ajuo jsnw sjeaym peos Bunsixe sy) se 9jAls swes oy 0) Jou |saym aseds Auy ‘enoqe zg udeiBesed Aq psjdwaxs sssjun
s|aaym peol Bulsixe ay) se 9z1s pue pJepuels alues ay) JO 8q pue suoje|nbal asn pue UOKONIISUOD O} WOJUOD j[BYS [9aym aleds Auy

JS8) 8U) (1B} [{IM |8BYM PBOJ B SB SN Ul [98Um aleds Jeaes

aoeds e Yym 18} pue uoneujwexa Joj pajussaid s|aiyan v aleds e SE 8SN J0j B|OIYBA 8L U] PRJNISS 8q 0] [99YM PEOJ PIEPUEB]S B JO) SpELl
8q ||eys uoisiroid ‘sased Jaylo ||e u| "pajdadde aq Jou |m ‘9|a1ysA sy} o} jJuswdinba piepuels se papy ssejun ‘sjaaym aseds Jaaes-asedg

‘lesym sieds B ypm papiaoid aq 0sje Jsnw apIyeA
9y ‘suonenbel asn PuUB UORIMNJISUOD O] WIOJUOD LIIYM ‘SJA)S PUB ZIS ‘PIEPUE)S LLIOJUN JO S|9BUM PEOJ JNO) SABY [JBYS S|9IYSA B )

JHAL JUVdS

Sg
g

€4

cd

(32

g XION3ddV

Page 51



APPENDIX 4
BLACKBURN WiTH DARWEN BOROUGH COUNCIL

BYE-LAWS

Made under Section 68 of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847, and Section 171 of the Public
Health Act 1875, by the BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN WITH DARWEN COUNCIL with respect
to Hackney Carriages in the BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN WITH DARWEN.

Interpretation
1. Throughout these Bye-laws "the Council” means the BOROUGH COUNCIL OF BLACKBURN
WITH DARWEN and "the District" means the BOROUGH OF BLACKBURN WITH DARWEN.

Provisions regulating the manner in which the number of each Hackney Carriage
corresponding with the number of its Licence, shall be displayed

2. A proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage shall:

(i) not wilfully or negligently cause or suffer any Licence Plate issued by the Council to be
concealed from public view while the carriage is standing or plying for hire;

(i) not cause or permit the carriage to stand or ply for hire with any such Plate so defaced that
any figure or material particular is illegible.

Provisions regulating how Hackney Carriages are to be furnished or provided

3. The proprietor of a Hackney Carriage shall:

(a) provide sufficient means by which any person in the carriage may communicate with the driver;
(b) cause the roof or covering to be kept water-tight;

(c) provide any necessary windows and a means of opening and closing not less than one window
on each side;

(d) cause the seats to be properly cushioned or covered;

(e) cause the floor to be provided with a proper carpet, mat or other suitable covering;

(f) cause the fittings and furniture generally to be kept in a clean condition, well maintained and
in every way fit for public service;

(g) provide means for securing luggage if the carriage is so constructed as to carry luggage;

(h) provide an efficient fire extinguisher which shall be carried in such a position as to be readily
available for use;

(i} provide at least two doors for the use of persons conveyed in such carriage and a separate
means of ingress and egress for the driver.

4. The proprietor of a Hackney Carriage shall cause the same to be provided with a taximeter so
constructed, attached, and maintained as to comply with the following requirements, that is to
say:

(a) the taximeter shall be fitted with a key, flag or other device, the operation of which will bring
the machinery of the taximeter into action and cause the word 'HIRED' to appear on the face of
the taximeter or some other indication to show that the

taximeter is no longer registering 'FOR HIRE';

(b) such key, flag, or other device shall be capable of being locked in such a position that the
machinery of the taximeter is not in action and that no fare is recorded on the face of the taximeter:
(c) when the machinery of the taximeter is in action, there shall be recorded on the face of the
taximeter in clearly legible figures a fare not exceeding the rate or fare which the proprietor or
driver is entitled to demand and take for the hire of the carriage by distance in pursuance of the
tariff fixed by the Council in that behalf;

(d) the word 'FARE' shall be printed on the face of the taximeter in plain letters so as clearly to
apply to the fare recorded thereon;

Page 52



(e) the taximeter shall be so placed that all letters and figures on the face thereof are at all times
plainly visible to any person being conveyed in the carriage, and for that purpose the letters and
figures shall be capable of being suitably illuminated during any period of hiring;

(f) the taximeter and all the fittings thereof shall be so affixed to the carriage with seals or other
appliances that it shall not be practicable for any person to tamper with them except by breaking,
damaging or permanently displacing the seals or other appliances.

Provisions regulating the conduct of the proprietors and drivers of Hackney Carriages
plying within the district in their several employments, and determining whether such
drivers shall wear any and what badges

5. The driver of a Hackney Carriage shali:

a) when standing or plying for hire, keep the key, flag or other device fitted in pursuance of the
Bye-law in that behalf locked in the position in which no fare is recorded on the face of the
taximeter;

b) before beginning a journey for which a fare is charged for distance and time, bring the
machinery of the taximeter into action by moving the said key, flag or other device, so that
the word 'HIRED' is legible on the face of the taximeter and keep the machinery of the
taximeter in action until the termination of the hiring;

c) cause the dial of the taximeter to be kept properly illuminated throughout any part of a hiring
which is during the hours of darkness, this being the time between half-an-hour after sunset
to half-an-hour before sunrise, and aiso at any other time at the request of the hirer.

6. A proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage shall not tamper with or permit any person to
tamper with any taximeter with which the carriage is provided, with the fittings thereof, or with the
seals affixed thereto.

7. The driver of a Hackney Carriage shall, when plying for hire in any street and not actually hired:

a) proceed with reasonable speed to one of the stands fixed by the Bye-law in that behalf;

b) if a stand, at the time of his arrival, is occupied by the full number of carriages authorised to
occupy it, proceed to another stand;

¢) on arriving at a stand not already occupied by the full number of carriages authorised to
occupy it, station the carriage immediately behind the carriage or carriages on the stand
and

d) so as to face in the same direction;

e) from time to time when any other carriage immediately in front is driven off or moved forward
cause his carriage to be moved forward so as to fill the place previously occupied by the
carriage driven off or moved forward.

8. A proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage, when standing or plying for hire, shall not, by
calling out or otherwise, importune any person to hire such carriage and shall not make use of
the services of any other person for the purpose.

9. The driver of a Hackney Carriage shall behave in a civil and orderly manner and shall take all
reasonable precautions to ensure the safety of persons conveyed in or entering or alighting from
the vehicle.

10. The proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage who has agreed or has been hired to be in
attendance with the carriage at an appointed time and place shall, unless delayed or prevented
by some sufficient cause, punctually attend with such carriage at such appointed time and place.

11. (a) A proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage, shall not convey or permit to be conveyed in
such carriage any greater number of persons than the number of persons specified on the Plate
affixed to the outside of the carriage provided however, that for this purpose, two children below
the age of ten years may be counted as one person in so far as the rear seating only is concerned;
(b) the driver shall not allow there to be conveyed in the front of a Hackney Carriage:

(i) any child below the age of ten years, or

(if) more than one person above that age.

Page 53



12. The drivers badge provided by the Council shall be worn by the driver of a Hackney Carriage
in such position and manner as to be plainly visible at all times when standing or plying for hire
and when hired.

13. The driver of a Hackney Carriage so constructed as to carry luggage shall, when requested
by any person hiring or seeking to hire the carriage:
a) convey a reasonable quantity of luggage;
b) afford reasonable assistance in loading and unloading;
c) afford reasonable assistance in removing it to or from the entrance of any building, station,
or place at which he may take up or set down such person.

Provisions fixing the rates or fares to be paid for Hackney Carriages within the district, and
securing the due publication of such fares

14. The proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage shall be entitled to demand and take for the
hire of the carriage, the rate or fare prescribed by the Council the rate or fare being calculated by
distance unless the hirer expresses at the commencement of the hiring his desire to engage by
time.

Provided aiways that where a Hackney Carriage furnished with a taximeter shall be hired by
distance, the proprietor or driver thereof shall not be entitled to demand and take a fare greater
than that recorded on the face of the taximeter, save for any extra charges authorised by the
Council which it may not be possible to record on the face of the taximeter.

15.(a) The proprietor of a Hackney Carriage shall cause a statement of the fares fixed by the
Council in that behalf to be exhibited inside the carriage, in clearly distinguishable letters and
figures.

(b) The proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage bearing a statement of fares in accordance
with this Bye-law shall not wilfully or negligently cause or suffer the letters or figures in the
statement to be concealed or rendered illegible at any time while the carriage is plying or being
used for hire.

Provisions securing the safe custody and re-delivery of any property accidentally left in
Hackney Carriages, and fixing the charges to be made in respect thereof

16. The proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage shall immediately after the termination of any
hiring or as soon as practicable thereafter, carefully search the carriage for any property which
may have been accidentally left therein.

17. The proprietor or driver of a Hackney Carriage shall, if any property accidentally left therein
by any person who may have been conveyed in the carriage be found by or handed to him.

a) carry it as soon as possible and in any event within 48 hours, if not sooner claimed by or on
behalf of its owner, to a Police Station in the district and either leave it in the custody of the
Officer in Charge of the Station on his giving a receipt for it, or at the option of the Police,
give to the Officer in Charge his

b) name and an address where the property may be reclaimed by the owner.

c) be entitled to receive from any person to whom the property shall be re-delivered an amount
equal to five pence in the pound of its estimated value (or the fare for the distance from the
place of finding to the Police Station, whichever be the greater) but not more than five
pounds.

Penalties

18. Every person who shall offend against any of these Bye-laws shall be liable on summary
conviction to a fine not exceeding one hundred pounds and in the case of a continuing offence to
a further fine not exceeding five pounds for each day during which the offence continues after
conviction therefore.

Page 54



APPENDIX 5

CONDITIONS ATTACHED TO HACKNEY CARRIAGE LICENCES

1.

The vehicle may not be fitted with roof signs other than a radio aerial which is fitted in
such a position as to satisfy the Council.

No signs or advertisements other than approved door signs shall be displayed on
hackney carriage vehicles unless:

(a)
(b)
(c)

the advertisement may be extended across both front and rear doors; and
the advertisement is no greater than 180cm x 60cm; and

the advertisement is subject to the approval of Officers, acting under delegated
powers.

Any radio equipment installed in the vehicle shall be fitted in such a position that its use
by the driver would not impair his control of the vehicle when it is in motion.

The vehicle shall be provided with a taximeter which must be so constructed, attached
and maintained so as to comply with the following requirements:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

the taximeter so fitted with a flag, key or other device, the turning of which will bring
the taximeter into operation and cause the word ‘HIRED’ to appear on its face.

such flag, key or other device shall be capable of being locked in such a position
that the taximeter will not operate and that no fare is recorded on the face of the
taximeter.

when the taximeter is in operation there shall be recorded on the face of the
taximeter in clearly legible figures a fare not exceeding the rate or fare which the
proprietor or driver is entitied to demand and take for the hire of the carriage by
distance.

the word ‘FARE’ shall be printed on the face of the taximeter in plain letters so as
clearly to apply to the fare recorded on it

the taximeter shall be so placed that all letters and figures on the face of it are at all
times plainly visible to any person being conveyed in the carriage and for that
purpose the letters and figures shall be capable of being illuminated during any
period of hiring

the taximeter and associated fittings shall be fixed in such a way to the carriage
with seals or other appliances that it shall not be practicable for any person to
tamper with them except by breaking, damaging or permanently displacing the
seals or other appliances.

The carriage shall contain a statement of fares, to be fitted and maintained in such a
position so as to be clearly show the following:

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

the minimum charge of hiring, if any
the fare tariff
the retention charge per minute or portion thereof

any additional charges, such as a soiling charge

Page 55



10.

1.
12.

13.

14.

15.

The vehicle shall at all times for the duration of the licence comply with the requirements
of the supplementary testing manual

Without prejudice to the obligations imposed by the general conditions of the licence, and
without prejudice to any other inspections of the vehicle which may be required to comply
with such regulations, the proprietor of the vehicle shall ensure that the:

(a) the vehicle is inspected every week for such matters as may be prescribed by the
Council;

(b) a written record of such inspections, and any additional inspections or service(s)
undertaken on the vehicle {in respect of such matters), is made at the time in the
form prescribed by the council; and

(c) such written records are retained safely and are made available for production to an
authorised officer of the council, or any police officer, within 72 hours of the request

The vehicle licence plate and holder issued by the council identifying the vehicle as a
hackney carriage vehicle shall be securely fixed to the exterior of the rear of the vehicle in
a position to be clearly visible and should be capable of being easily removed by an
authorised officer of the council or a police officer.

A plate indicating the number of passengers allowed to be carried shall be securely fixed
in the interior of the vehicle so that the information on the plate is facing the rear of the
vehicle and is clearly visible to all passengers.

The vehicle shall be submitted for inspection to the council’'s motor vehicle service station
at the required frequency for the age of the vehicle, and at any other time at the discretion
of the council.

The vehicle shall be kept in good order and condition at all times.

Hackney carriage vehicle licences shall be granted for a period of 12 months or until the
renewal date specified by the Council, whichever is the shorter period.

Where the proprietor of a licensed hackney carriage has been requested by an
authorised officer of the council, he shall produce for inspection the vehicle licence and/or
certificate of insurance within 7 days.

The vehicle shall be equipped at all times with suitable wheelchair ramps clearly marked
with the registration number of the vehicle.

The proprietor shall ensure that the vehicle is equipped with apparatus for the securing of
a wheelchair in the vehicle.

Page 56



APPENDIX 6
CONDITIONS ATTACHED TO PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCES
(a) Only fittings & signs agreed by the council can be used on the vehicle

Unless required by statute, order, or as mentioned in paragraphs (b) and (c), no
signs, lights, advertisements or other fittings shall be displayed on or from the
vehicle except a radio aerial which is to be fitted in such a manner as to satisfy
the council.

(b) Only agreed door signs showing the name of the operator may be
displayed on the vehicle

The proprietor shall display suitable signage on the vehicle to the satisfaction of
the Council, the sign to include the business name of the operator, but not to
include the word ‘taxi’ in any form.

(c) Only the licensed private hire sticker issued with the plate must be
displayed

The proprietor of a private hire vehicle shall display within the upper half panel on
each of the rear side passenger doors of a private hire vehicle the permanent
self-adhesive vinyl notice, (which shall have the text "Licensed Private Hire
Vehicle" and the text "Advance Booking Only") provided by the Council,
identifying the vehicle as a private hire vehicle, and also the plate number. No
other letter, numbers or any other type of livery may be displayed on the signage
of these doors.

*On MPV's (Multi passenger vehicle) licensed as private hire vehicles, the signs
must be displayed on the rear near side passenger door and on the opposite
panel on the offside of the vehicle.

A price list must be displayed where the customer can see it and it must show
(a) the minimum charge of each hiring if applicable

(b) the fare tariff

(c) the retention charge per minute or portion thereof

(d) any additional charges

The vehicle shall at all times for the duration of the licence comply with the
requirements of the supplemental test manual.

The vehicle licence plate issued by the council identifying the vehicle as a private hire
vehicle shall be securely fixed to the exterior of the rear of the vehicle in a position to
be clearly visible and should be capable of being easily removed by an authorised
officer of the council or a police officer.

The vehicle shall be submitted for inspection at the council's motor vehicle service
station at the required frequency for the age of the vehicle, and at any other time at the
discretion of the council.

Where the proprietor of a licensed private hire vehicle has been requested by an
authorised officer of the council, he shall produce for inspection the vehicle licence
and/or certificate of insurance within 7 days.

Page 57



If the vehicle is fitted with a taximeter, that taximeter must be so constructed, attached
and maintained as to comply with the following requirements:

(a)

(b}

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

the taximeter shall be fitted with a key, flag, or other device, the turning of which
will operate the taximeter and cause the word ‘HIRED' to appear on the face of
the taximeter;

such key, flag or other device shall be capable of being locked in such a position
that the taximeter does not operate and that no fare is recorded on the face of
the taximeter;

when the taximeter is in operation, there shall be recorded on the face of the
taximeter in clearly legible figures a fare not exceeding the rate or fare with the
proprietor or driver is entitled to demand and take for the hire of the vehicle by
distance;

the word ‘FARE' shall be printed on the face of the taximeter in plain letters so as
clearly to apply the fares recorded on it;

the taximeter shall be so placed that all letters and figures on the face of it are at
all times plainly visible to all passengers and for that purpose, the letters and
figures shall be capable of being suitably illuminated during any period of hiring;

the taximeter and all its fittings shall be so affixed to the vehicle with seals or
other appliances that it shall not be practicable for any person to tamper with
them except by breaking, damaging, or permanently displacing the seals or other
appliances

Page 58



1.

Appendix 7

FOREWORD

This document sets out the Council's framework and requirements for the licensing of
stretched limousines.

Ordinarily Private Hire Vehicles are licensed under the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976 which in general terms allows Councils to licence vehicles which are
suitable to be used for private hire and which have less than 9 passenger seats.

DEFINITION
For the purposes of this document a stretch limousine is defined as follows:

A motor vehicle that has been lengthened by the insertion of an additional body section
and modified by a coachbuilder to contain luxury facilities and fixtures

- thatis capable of carrying up to but not exceeding 8 passengers;

- that prior to the introduction of this policy could not currently be licensed by the Council
as a Private Hire Vehicle;

- thatis not a decommissioned military or emergency service vehicle

DRIVER AND OPERATOR LICENSING REQUIREMENTS

The limousine operator must hold a private hire operators’ licence issued by Blackburn
with Darwen Borough Council and once licenced, the limousine may only be driven by a
licensed Blackburn with Darwen driver.

All bookings for the licensed stretched limousine must be booked through the licensed
private hire operator.

STANDARD CONDITIONS FOR STRETCHED LIMOUSINES

Licensed limousines must comply at all times with the requirements of Road Traffic
legislation and have a valid Single Vehicle Approval (SVA) Certificate.

Stretched limousines must comply with the existing conditions of a Private Hire Vehicle
Licence insofar as they are not superseded by these conditions and the local private hire
licence fee shall be the same.

The vehicle shall not be used for every day Private Hire use

The Proprietor of a stretched limousine must:-

(iy Ensure that a suitable fire extinguisher should be mounted on brackets, in a
convenient position in the driver's compartment;

(i) Ensure that the vehicle and all its fittings and equipment are at all times kept in a fit,
serviceable, efficient, safe and clean condition and all relevant statutory requirements
(including those contained in the Motor Vehicles (Construction & Use) Regulations)
are fully complied with. Should the vehicle fail to comply with any legal requirement
then the vehicle should be removed from service until the reason for non-compliance
is rectified;

Page 59



10.

11.

(i) Ensure that loose luggage is not carried within the passenger compartment of the
vehicle;

(iv) Ensure that any CCTV cameras installed in the vehicle are registered with the
Information Commissioner's office and operated in accordance with current UK
legislation.

The proprietor of the vehicle must:-

(i) Ensure that the vehicle is at all times only driven by a person who holds a current
driver's licence issued by Blackburn with Darwen Council;

(if) Not permit to be conveyed in the vehicle more than the number of persons for which
the vehicle is licensed, regardless of the age or size of the passengers;

(i} Not convey any passengers in the front compartment of the vehicle;

(iv) Ensure that seatbelts are fitted to all forward and rear facing seats and must be worn
at all times by passengers whilst the vehicle is in motion. There is no requirement for
seatbelts on sideways facing seats.

(v) Not supply any intoxicating liquor in the vehicle unless there is in force an appropriate
premises licence permitting the sale or supply of the same.

(vi) Not play or permit the performance of any media that, given its age classification or
content, is unsuitable for the age of the passengers in the vehicle.

The passenger compartment of the vehicle may be fitted with darkened or blackened glass

The vehicle will not be required to display an external private hire vehicle licence plate.
The Council will issue the vehicle proprietor with an internal licence which identifies the
vehicle as a private hire vehicle, and includes the registration number of the vehicle and
the number of passengers permitted to be carried.

In the event that the vehicle is to be no longer used for private hire (special event)
purposes, the proprietor must surrender the vehicle licence to the Council within seven
days.

No signs, notices, advertisements, plates, marks, numbers, letters, figures, symbols,
emblems or devices shall be displayed on, in or from the vehicle, other than those
specifically approved by the Council.

There must be in force a valid policy of insurance covering the use of the vehicle for private
hire special events and the proprietor of the vehicle is shown as the policy holder.

These documents must be produced to an authorised officer of the Council or a Police
Officer at such time and place as may be required.

Page 60



APPENDIX 8

STANDARD CONDITIONS ATTACHED TO A PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE OPERATOR’S
LICENCE

1. NOTICES

You must display these notices on your premises:
a. a copy of your Operator’s Licence (Personal address of licensee will not be shown)
b. a chart showing fares and charges
c. a certificate of employer’s liability insurance.

You must display all these notices in an area where the public will see them e.g. a
waiting room.

2. NOTIFICATIONS

a. You must inform the Council in writing within 48 hours

o if you are due to appear in court for a motoring offence or a criminal offence
» if the Police have given you a caution
» if you are convicted of a criminal offence or 2 motoring offence.

b. You must write to the Council and give them an address and telephone number where
they can contact you at all reasonable times. If any of these details change you must tell
the Council in writing within 7 days.

¢. If you change your home address you must tell the Council in writing within 7 days.

d. If someone makes a serious complaint about anyone who has a licence from the Council
you must tell the licensing section immediately. You must give them the name of the
person involved and tell them what the complaint is.

A serious complaint includes dishonesty, violence, indecency, racism or any
complaint which involves drugs or gives rise to safeguarding concerns.

e. This Private Hire Vehicle Operators Licence is non-transferable.

If the owner of the business changes:

e you must tell the Council, in writing, within 7 days. {You must include a letter from
the previous owner or some other written proof that the owner of the business has
changed.)

¢ the new owner must make a new application for a Private Hire Vehicle Operator's
licence.

If the firm still has a licence, the Council will only grant a new one if they are
sure that the interests of the original licence holder have been respected. The
Council will need written proof of this from the original licence holder.

3. DISCLOSURE AND BARRING SERVICE CHECKS

a. A recent basic disclosure certificate must be produced to the Council each year, for the
private hire operator or any of the directors or partners in that company or partnership who
are not also licensed drivers.

b. Operators must confirm that they have had sight of a Basic DBS check for each dispatcher
who is not also a licensed driver and to ensure that Basic DBS checks are conducted on
any individuals added to the dispatch staff register and that this is compatible with the
operator’s policy on employing ex-offenders.

Page 61



" 4. COMPLAINTS

a. Your company must keep a record of complaints that is available for authorised officers to
view upon request. All your staff must be made aware of the existence of these records,
in particular desk operators. You must record details of all complaints you receive. You
must also record what you are going to do about the complaint or what you have already
done about it.

b. If anyone makes a complaint, you must give them the telephone number for the
Council’s Licensing Section and the webpage where they can complete an online
reporting form https://blackburn.gov.uk/licences-and-permits/taxi-driver-
licences/complaints-about-taxi-licensing.

¢. You must keep a record of complaints for at least 12 months. You might have to keep it
for longer if an authorised officer of the Council or a Police Officer tells you to.

5. ILLEGAL PLYING FOR HIRE

a. Any private hire vehicle owned by yourself or working from your premises, must not try to
pick up or offer the vehicle as available for fare paying passengers to any person in a road
or public place other than if that person has pre booked.

b. You must not ask anyone else to pick up passengers in a road or public place that has not
pre booked a vehicle

NOTE: Section 167 of the Criminal Justice and Public Order Act 1994 makes touting a
criminal offence. (‘Touting’ in this section means offering a vehicle as available to
persons who have not pre booked a journey.)

‘Public place’ means any road or other property which at the time the touting occurs
members of the public are allowed to be whether they have paid to be there or not.

6. NAMES OF OPERATORS AND DOOR SIGNS

All company names and company door signs are subject to approval by the Council.
No door sign shall display the word” taxi” in any form.

7. INSPECTIONS

If an authorised officer of the Council or a Police Officer wants to enter your business
premises at a reasonable time, you must allow them in. ‘A reasonable time’ means when you
are open for business.

8. RECORDS

You must keep well organised and up to date records, of all your vehicles and drivers. You
must be able to prove your record system is working if asked by a police officer or an
authorised officer of the Council.

The following records must be kept on your business premises:
Vehicle Records

You must keep a written record of all vehicles, including Hackney Carriage Vehicles acting
as private hire. These details must include the following:

. The name and address of the owner of the vehicle
b. The make and model of the vehicle

¢. The registration number
d
e

1))

. The plate number of the vehicle
. The expiry date of the licence

Page 62



f. The date the vehicle started working from your premises
g. The date any vehicle finished working from your premises
h. The insurance details of the vehicle

You must show these records to an authorised officer of the Council or a Police Officer if they
ask to see them.

Driver Records

You must keep a written record of all drivers working for your private hire company. This must
include all drivers, including Hackney Carriage drivers acting as private hire. These details
must include the following:

a. The name and address of every private hire vehicle and hackney carriage driver
b. A record of which Council issued the licence

c. The issue and expiry date of the licence

d. The drivers’ call sign.

You must show these records to an authorised officer of the Council or a Police Officer if they
ask to see them.

Dispatch Staff Records

Any dispatch staff who are not also licensed drivers must be recorded in a staff register. This
register must include:

a. Their full name

b. Home address

c. Date of birth

d. National Insurance number

e. The date you saw their basic DBS

9. PREMISES

Facilities for passengers - Waiting rooms

If you have a waiting room for passengers, it should be separate from the drivers’ rest area
and the operator’s room and it must be kept clean, tidy, well maintained and well lit. It should
also have clean toilets with washing facilities

NOTE - You must not have any gaming machines on your premises that need a permit under
the Gaming Act 2005.

10. CONDITION OF PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES

a. You must make ensure the vehicles are always kept clean, inside and outside

b. All the vehicles must carry all the correct notices and identification. Full details of
requirements can be found on the private hire vehicle licence.

c. All the vehicles must be well maintained both mechanically and structurally, so that they
meet the standards of the Council’s testing procedures.

11. CONDUCT

a. You must make sure that all your drivers are fit to drive and that they are not too tired for
any reason.

b.  You must make sure that all your drivers are polite towards customers, the general public
and other road users.

Page 63



12. HIRINGS

Standards of service

You must provide a prompt, efficient and reliable service for members of the public. You
must provide the service you have advertised.

e When someone hires a vehicle, the driver must arrive at the correct time unless
he/she has been delayed for a good reason.

e If you send out any vehicle to a hiring, it must be licensed for use as a private hire
vehicle or hackney carriage,

e The person who is driving the vehicle must hold a current Dual driver, Private Hire
Vehicle Driver or Hackney Carriage Vehicle Driver’s Licence.

13. ACCEPTING HIRINGS

a. When someone makes a booking, they may ask you about your charges and how much
the charge for the journey will be. If they do, you must give them this information before
you accept their booking or arrange a journey for them.

b.  Only people who are employed to take bookings at the premises are allowed to give
information on charges.

14. RECORDS OF HIRINGS

Whenever someone makes a booking for a private hire vehicle, you must record the details
either in a written or computerised format. Written records must be in a book with pages
numbered consecutively. Do not use a loose-leaf book.

The details you must record include:
a. The date and time of the booking

b. How the booking was made (by telephone or in person or via subcontract from
another operator)

The time of the pick-up

The place of the pick-up

The destination

The name of the person making the booking.

The name of the passenger (if different from [f])

Where the journey is subcontracted from another operator the name of that operator.
The name of the driver, their call sign and licence number

The vehicle registration that was dispatched

The fare (if this has been agreed before the journey)

The name of the operator where the journey has been subcontracted
m. Any other remarks

T T gameanp

h

You must keep these records for at least 12 months. You must keep them longer if a Council
Officer or a Police Officer asks you to.

15. PUBLIC SERVICE VEHICLES

Operators must not dispatch drivers who hold only a passenger carrying vehicle licence in a
public service vehicle, such as a minibus, to fulfil a private hire booking, without the informed
consent of the booker.

Page 64



DEFINITIONS

“The Act of 1976" is the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.

“Authorised Officer” means the same as in Section 80 of the Act of 1976 and Section 19 of the
‘Health and Safety at work Act 1974.

The Council means the Borough of Blackburn with Darwen.

“The Operator” means a person who holds a licence to operate private hire vehicles issued
under Section 55 of the ‘Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.’

“Private Hire Vehicle” means the same as it does in Section 80 of the Act of 1976.

“Employ” means to use the services of somebody, for any reason.

IMPORTANT
You must make sure:

¢ All your vehicles are properly maintained
» All your vehicles are insured and licensed
+ All your drivers follow the Council’'s policy and licence conditions

Planning consent

You must have planning permission for your Private Hire business premises. If there are any
conditions or restrictions with the planning permission, you must abide by them.

Page 65



Appendix 9

)
s o

BLACKBURN
DARWEN

BORO UL cOUNDN

Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Penalty Points Scheme

Points will be issued by authorised officers of the Authority to licence holders who are
found to be in breach of legislation, byelaws, the council’s policy or conditions of their
licence.

The maximum number of points that can be imposed in respect of any particular matter
is 10, but it is possible for one incident or inspection to result in more than one set of
points being issued.

If a licence holder accumulates 20 points or more, within a rolling 12 month period,
their licence will be referred to the General Licensing Sub-Committee for review.

Any licence holder aggrieved by the imposition of penalty points on their licence may
appeal to the Service Lead for Environmental Health & Public Protection, who will
consider their explanation as to why the points should not have been imposed.

Notice of the appeal must be submitted in writing to the Authority within 14 days of
receiving the penalty points notice.

The following tables list the breaches of legislation that attract penalty points

Page 66



PRIVATE HIRE

A. Offences under the Local Government (Misc. Prov.} Act 1976 Points
1. Vehicle not displaying plates. (Sec.48(6){a)) 10
2. Failure to notify vehicle transfer within 14 days. (Sec.49(1)) 10
3. Failure to present vehicle for inspection. (Sec.50(1)} 5
4. Failure to inform Authority where the vehicle is stored. (Sec.50(2)) 5
5. Failure to report an accident within 72 hours.(Sec.50(3)) 10
6. Failure to produce a vehicle licence and insurance certificate.(Sec50(4)) 5
7. Failure to produce Private Hire driver licence.(Sec.53(3)) 5
8. Failure to wear driver badge {Sec.54(2)) 10
9. Failure by Operator to keep records of bookings (Sec.56(2)) 10
10. Failure by Operator to keep records of vehicles (Sec.56(3)) 10
11. Failure to produce a Private Hire Operators licence (Sec56(4)) 5
12, Making false statement or withholding information to obtain a licence (Sec.57(2)) 10
13. Failure to return vehicle plate within 7 days after notice given (Sec.58(2)) 5
14. Failure to surrender driver licence after suspension (Sec.61(2)) 5
13. Charging more than the meter fare when HV used as a PV (Sec.67) 10
16. Unnecessarily prolonging a journey (Sec.69) 10
17. Obstruction of an authorised officer or constable (Sec.73(1)(a)) 10
18. Failure to comply with requirement of an authorised officer or constable (Sec73(1)b)) 10
19. Failure to give information or assistance to an authorised officer or constable 10
(Sec.73(1)(c))
B. Offences under the Transport Act 1980
Section Offence Points
64 (2)(a) Driving a vehicle with a sign above its roof which consists or includes the word 10
“taxi” or “cab” whether alone or part of another word
64 (2)(b) Causes or permits a vehicle to have a sign above its roof which consists or 10
includes the word “taxi” or “cab” whether alone or part of another word.
C. Policy and Conditions of Licence
Each individual non-compliance with the policy or breach of licence conditions 10

Page 67




HACKNEY CARRIAGE

A. Offences under the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 Points
1. Failure to notify vehicle transfer (Sec.49(1)) 10
2. Failure to present vehicle for inspection (Sec.50(1)) S
3. Failure to inform Authority where the vehicle is stored (Sec.50(2)) 3
4. Failure to report an accident (Sec.50(3)) 10
5. Failure to produce a vehicle licence and insurance certificate (Sec50(4)) 5
6. Failure to produce HD driver licence (Sec.53(3)) 5
7. Making false statement or withholding information to obtain a licence (Sec.57(2)) 10
8. Failure to return vehicle plate within 7 days after notice given (Sec.58(2)) 5
9. Failure to surrender driver licence after suspension (Sec.61(2)) S
10. Charging more than the fare shown on the meter for a journey ending outside the district 10
without prior agreement (Sec.66)
11. Charging more than the meter fare when HV used as a PH (Sec.67) 10
12. Unnecessarily prolonging a journey (Sec.69) 10
13. Obstruction of an authorised officer or constable (Sec.73(1)(a)) 10
14. Failure to comply with requirement of an authorised officer or constable (Sec73(1)(b)) 10
15. Failure to give information or assistance to an authorised officer or constable (Sec.73(1)(c)) 10
B. Offences under the Town Police Clauses Act 1847
Section | Offence Penalty
48 FaiI}Jre by HC proprietor to hold a copy of HC driver licences of persons who use the 10
vehicle
59 Carrying other person than the hirer without consent 10
C. Offences under the Byelaws
Each individual breach of hackney carriage byelaws 10
D. Policy and Conditions of Licence
Each individual non-compliance with the policy or breach of licence conditions 10

Page 68




Appendix 2

Summary of material changes and consultation responses

3.6 DBS Update Service

3.6.1 All licensed drivers must sign up to the DBS update service and maintain their registration
throughout the licensed period, to enable the Council to undertake periodic checks at least
every 6 months, in accordance with the Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards.

3.6.2 Licensed drivers who fail to register with the update service, or who allow their registration
to lapse, will be required to provide a new enhanced certificate every six months.

3.6.3 Where the Council is unable to check the driver’s status due to failings on the part of the
driver, it may suspend the drivers licence until such time as it is satisfied that there is no
new information recorded against the driver.

3.6.4 Nothing in this section will negate the requirement for licensed drivers to inform the Council
within 48 hours of any arrest and release, charge or conviction of any sexual offence, any
offence involving dishonesty or violence and any motoring offence.

3.6.5 If there has been a change to the information held by the DBS, the driver will be required to
provide a new certificate to the Council and register that one with the update service.

Rationale

The Statutory Standards para 6.2 states “All licensed drivers should also be required to evidence
continuous registration with the DBS update service to enable the licensing authority to
routinely check for new information every six months. Drivers that do not subscribe up to the
Update Service should still be subject to a check every six months.”

Since 2018 the Council has encouraged drivers to sign up to the update service to allow the
Licensing service to verify that the driver has not committed any further offences or had any other
relevant information recorded against them since their last DBS was issued. Such checks have
only been carried out at the point of renewal which is every 1 or 3 years depending on the length of
licence held.

It has become apparent over the last 4 years that whilst the majority of driver’s will initially register
with the update service, they then allow their registration to lapse, leaving the authority unable to
check their offending records online.

Blackburn with Darwen currently has almost 1,200 licensed drivers. To carry out the bi-annual
checks required by the Statutory Standards, the Council will need to automate this process through
the third party supplier that already deals with the Council’s DBS checks, as the licensing service
does not have the resources to undertake these checks manually. Drivers must maintain their
subscription to allow this to happen, or stand the cost and inconvenience of having to produce a
new certificate every 6 months.

Consultation Response

There was some resistance at the Taxi Forum to any automatic suspension of driver licences if
licensed drivers were not on the update service. It was explained that the power to suspend was
discretionary and would only be used where drivers fail to respond promptly to requests for new
certificates, if they had not maintained their registration with the update service.

Page 69



3.8 English proficiency

3.8.1 The Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards 2020 identify that a lack of language
proficiency could impact on a driver’s ability to understand written documents, such as
policies and guidance, relating to the protection of children and vulnerable adults and
applying this to identify and act on signs of exploitation. Oral proficiency will be of relevance
in the identification of potential exploitation through communicating with passengers and
their interaction with others.

3.8.2 It goes on to state in para 6.15, that a licensing authority’s test of a driver’s proficiency
should cover both oral and written English language skills to achieve these objectives.

3.8.3 The Council requires all applicants for new driver’s licences to demonstrate their language
proficiency, either by providing evidence of formal qualifications such as GCSE, GCE,
Functional Skills Level 1 or 2 in English, or ESOL certificate at Level 1 or 2.

3.8.4 Applicants who do not hold any formal qualifications in English must undertake a free skills
assessment provided by Blackburn Adult Learning service and provide evidence that they
have passed the assessment.

Rationale

This is a new requirement introduced by the Statutory Standards with the relevant wording
reflected in the draft. The skills assessment is free and the ESOL courses are also free for people
with low or no income.

Consultation Response

At the Taxi Forum a Private Hire Operator who is licensed to operate 1 vehicle and a second
operator licensed to operate up to 10 vehicles, voiced concerns that this would make recruiting
new drivers difficult, but the proposal was supported by a third operator.

The PHDA have indicated they had no problem with this proposal

3.9 Driver Training and Knowledge Test

3.9.1 Applicants for a new driver’s licence will be required to pass the Blackburn with Darwen
Knowledge Test before being issued with a licence. A fee is required for the driver training
sessions and tests and any applicant cancelling an appointment with less than 48 hours’
notice, will not be eligible for a refund.

3.9.2 The Council publishes a comprehensive guidance pack and training for new drivers on its
website, to help them prepare for the driver training and knowledge test.

3.9.3 If an applicant fails three successive tests, their application will be rejected and a period of
12 months must elapse, before they will be eligible to book onto the driver training session
again.

3.9.4 Applicants must bring in their photo-card driving licence on the day of the test. This must be
in date and have their current address on it.

Rationale

The council has moved the booking facility online as part of a wider project to move to a fully online
application service for applicants for driver licences. Candidates now pay online and this
amendment simplifies the cancellation process and removes the need for candidates to pay an
additional cancellation fee. The introduction of a cap on the number of attempts available to
candidates would not have a negative impact on the majority of new applicants who prepare for the
training using the published materials and are able to pass on their first, second or third attempt.

Page 70



Consultation Response

At the Taxi Forum, the operator who submitted the written response (Appendix 5) spoke out
against the proposed cap on attempts. They also suggested that the local routes element of the
test be scrapped altogether.

Another operator supported the proposal

The PHDA have indicated they had no problem with this.

3.10 Safeguarding and Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) training

3.10.2 In order for them to recognise the signs of CSE and other forms of exploitation such as County
Lines, all applicants for Blackburn with Darwen driver licences must have successfully
completed an eLearning Safeguarding Course provided by the Council’s nominated provider.

Rationale

The current driver training provided for new applicants by the licensing services includes an
overview of safeguarding and CSE.

Paragraphs 6.5 — 6.13 of the Statutory Standards place a much greater emphasis on the need for
licensed drivers to be aware of and alert to the signs of potential abuse and know where to turn to
if they suspect that a child or vulnerable adult is at risk of harm, or is in immediate danger. It also
acknowledges the National Crime Agencies 2018 county lines threat assessment which highlighted
the road network as key to the transportation of county lines victims, drugs and cash.

There are a number of accredited training providers who have developed specialist online training
for the taxi trade that covers all of these elements and who regularly review and update their
training programmes to include emerging threats and national trends.

By moving that element of the driver training to a specialist provider, we can ensure that new
drivers have received the most up to date training in this very important area and it will allow the
Council provided driver training to concentrate on the local rules and national legislation that
driver’s need to be aware of.

Consultation Response

No negative responses

3.12 Medical Fitness

3.12.3 Medical certificates, completed by the driver's own GP practice, or by one of the Council’s
approved suppliers for medicals as published on the Council’s website, are required on first
application and then every 5 years from age 45 until the age of 65 when they are required
annually

Rationale

The Council requires drivers to meet the group 2 standard of fitness that is applied to other
professional drivers and uses the D4 form to collect this information. The current policy specifies
that the medical should be completed by the drivers own GP, but does not currently require
medicals at the same frequency the DVLA.

The DVLA are responsible for issuing PSV and HGV driver licences and require a group 2 medical
assessment recorded on the D4 form, on first application and then again at 45 years of age, then
every 5 years until the driver turns 65 and then every year. The proposal is to adopt the same
frequency of medical assessment used by the DVLA.

Page 71



Despite the wording in the current policy, the Council has for a number of years accepted medical
certificates from 2 other approved providers, to ease the pressure on drivers who were unable to
get appointments from their own GP’s for these medicals. This established practice is now
reflected in the revised wording.

Consultation Response

The PHDA'’s formal response is that this is ‘Not Agreed’.

4. Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicles

4.1.1 The Council will not issue a vehicle licence for any vehicle which is licensed as either a
hackney carriage or private hire vehicle with any other Local Authority. If the Council
becomes aware that other vehicle licences are running concurrently with this Council’s
licence, the Blackburn with Darwen vehicle licence will be immediately revoked.

Rationale

This requirement is explicit in most licensing authority policies or vehicle conditions including
Transport for London, but the Council’s policy is currently silent in this respect. It is felt necessary
to make the provision explicit, to remove any doubt in the trade’s mind that it is possible to operate
a vehicle licensed by more than one authority.

All Licensing authority’s issue vehicle licences subject to conditions which specify the plate and
signage that the vehicle must display - Section 48(2) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976 (LGMPA).

If a licensed vehicle displays any signs that are not approved by this Council, or does not display
the plates and signs that are required by this Council, at all times that the vehicle licence is valid, it
would be operating in breach of the licence conditions. Section 60(3) LGMPA, provides for a
vehicle licence to be suspended or revoked for any reasonable cause, which includes operating in
breach of conditions.

Consultation Response

At the Taxi Forum a Private Hire Operator who is licensed to operate 1 vehicle spoke out against
this proposal and another raised concerns about the impact of this on accident management
companies.

4.1.2 New vehicles being presented for a licence must meet the following minimum emissions

standards.
Euro 4 emission limits (petrol) Euro 6 emission limits (diesel)
CO -1.0 g/km CO - 0.50 g/km
HC —0.10 g/km HC+ NOx — 0.17 g/km
NOx - 0.08 NOx — 0.08 g/km
PM — no limit PM — 0.005 g/km
PM - 6.0x10 *1/km
Rationale

The Department for Transport consulted earlier this year on an update to their best practice guidance
which confirms in para 8.29 that Licensing authorities should not impose age limits for the licensing
of vehicles, but should consider more targeted requirements to meet its policy objectives on
emissions etc.

The suggested emission standards for new vehicles will contribute to the Council’s Climate

Page 72



Emergency Action Plan and commitment to improve air quality. They are the same standards as
those referenced in the Department for Transport’s 2020 Clean Air Zone Framework - Annex A,
Clean Air Zone minimum classes and standards.

Consultation Response

There was a general opposition to this proposal at the Taxi Forum.

The PHDA'’s formal response is that this is ‘Not Agreed'.

The 3 individual responses passed on by the Hackney Carriage Association all oppose this
proposal.

Objections have been sent by an operator on behalf of 30 drivers against the introduction of the
Euro 6 policy

2 of the individual responses directly to the Licensing service specifically oppose this proposal and
the Executive Member has agreed not to recommend this proposal.

4.3.3 The Council will not issue a vehicle licence for any vehicle that has been written off by
insurers under category A, B or S.
e A relates to vehicles that must be scrapped
e B relates to vehicles that may be broken and their parts reused
¢ S relates to vehicles that have sustained structural damage that is repairable.

Rationale

The council’s policy is currently silent in respect of licensing vehicles which have been written off for
insurance purposes, but which may be presented for licensing. Category N vehicles are those that
have sustained non-structural damage that is repairable and so would be eligible for a licence if they
can pass the council’s vehicle testing requirements.

Consultation Response

There was a general opposition to this proposal at the Taxi Forum.

The PHDA'’s formal response is that this is ‘Not Agreed’.

1 of the individual responses directly to the Licensing service specifically opposed this proposal
and the Executive Member has agreed not to recommend this proposal.

6. Private Hire Operators
6.3 Disclosure and Barring Service Checks

6.3.1 In accordance with the Statutory Guidance the Council requires applicants to provide a recent
basic DBS certificate before a private hire operator’s licence will be granted, and then
annually throughout the duration of the licence, in respect of the person named on the licence,
or for each director or partner where the licence is held by a company or partnership.

6.3.2 Where an applicant, director or partner also holds a valid Blackburn with Darwen driver’s
licence, the requirements in 6.3.1 are dis-applied in respect of that individual.

6.3.3 Any applicant who has spent six continuous months or more, overseas within the last 5 years,
will also be required to produce a Certificate of Good Conduct from the relevant Embassy or
High Commission, for each country where they resided. The certificate must have been
produced no more than 3 months before it is presented to the Council. This document must
be a certified translation, if the original Embassy Certificate is not in English

6.3.4 Operators are also expected to be able to demonstrate that all staff who have contact with
the public or oversee the dispatching of vehicles do not pose a risk to the public and should
evidence that they have had sight of a satisfactory Basic DBS check for each individual
named on the register required by 6.6.4.

Page 73



6.3.5 Applications for private hire operators licences must provide a copy of their policy on
employing ex-offenders in roles that would be on the register required by 6.6.4.

6.6 Records

6.6.4 A register of dispatch staff, who are not also licensed drivers, which includes their full name,
address, date of birth and National Insurance number, shall be maintained and made
available to an authorised officer of the Council on request.

Rationale — These are new requirements introduced by the Statutory Standards.

Consultation Response

At the Taxi Forum a Private Hire Operator who is licensed to operate 1 vehicle and a second
operator licensed for up to 10 vehicles spoke out against 6.3.1.

One operator also asked how 6.3.4 could be applied to overseas call centres.

Another operator asked if the Council would be providing guidance on the policy for ex-offenders
and it was suggested that a sub-group could be established to look at producing a template for all
operators to use.

6.6.5 The use of a driver who holds a PCV licence and the use of a public service vehicle (PSV)
such as a minibus to undertake a private hire vehicle booking, is not permitted without the
informed consent of the booker.

Rationale - This is a new requirement introduced by the Statutory Standards.

Consultation Response

At the Taxi Forum a Private Hire Operator who is licensed to operate 1 vehicle said this would be
impractical as drivers are diverted whilst going to jobs

Revised Convictions Policy

13.3 A minor traffic or vehicle related offence is considered to be one which does not involve loss
of life, driving under the influence of drink or drugs, driving whilst using a mobile phone, and
has not resulted in injury to any person or damage to any property, including vehicles.

An applicant with 7 or more points on their DVLA licence for minor traffic or vehicle related
offences, will not be granted a licence until at least 5 years have elapsed since the
completion of any sentence imposed.

Rationale — The statutory standards address motoring convictions in the following 2 paragraphs
from the Annex — Assessment of Previous Convictions

“Hackney carriage and private hire drivers are professional drivers charged with the responsibility
of carrying the public. It is accepted that offences can be committed unintentionally, and a single
occurrence of a minor traffic offence would not prohibit the granting of a licence. However,
applicants with multiple motoring convictions may indicate that an applicant does not exhibit the
behaviours of a safe road user and one that is suitable to drive professionally.

Any motoring conviction while a licensed driver demonstrates that the licensee may not take their
professional responsibilities seriously. However, it is accepted that offences can be committed
unintentionally, and a single occurrence of a minor traffic offence may not necessitate the
revocation of a taxi or private hire vehicle driver licence providing the authority considers that the
licensee remains a fit and proper person to retain a licence.”

Page 74



The remainder of the offences referred to in the Annex are directly lifted from the Institute of
Licensing’s (IOL) 2018 guidance on determining the suitability of applicants and licensees in the
hackney and private hire trades.

That guidance was produced by the IOL in partnership with the Local Government Association,
Lawyers in Local Government and the National Association of Licensing and Enforcement Officers,
following widespread consultation, to assist Licensing authorities assess the fitness of individuals
to hold licences.

Para 4.42 of the IOL guidance on the assessment of minor traffic or vehicle offences is replicated
in para 13.3 of the draft policy.

Consultation Response

There was a general opposition to this proposal at the Taxi Forum.

The PHDA'’s formal response is that this is ‘Not Agreed’ and the Executive Member has agreed not
to recommend this proposal.

1 of the individual responses directly to the Licensing service specifically supported this proposal.

If Committee remove this clause, minor traffic offences as defined in para 13.3 will continue to be
considered under the existing convictions policy and the relevant sections will be incorporated into
the revised draft.

It is worth noting that there have been no objections raised to para 13.4 which deals with major
traffic offences that result in injury to any person, damage to property including vehicles, driving
without insurance or other insurance related offences.

The PHDA has also ‘Not Agreed’ 3 other elements from the draft policy which have not been
amended as part of this review.

1) Conditions attached to drivers licences - Appendix 2 — Smoking in private hire
vehicle fines

This is not a condition on a licence, but the Licensing Service do include reference to the Health
Act 2006 on all driver licences, to remind the holder of the offences and penalties that have been in
place since the Smoke Free legislation came into effect on 2006.

2) Appendix 9 — Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Penalty Points Scheme

This scheme was introduced before the last policy revision in 2016 and remains unchanged.

3) 3.5 Disclosure and Barring Service checks - para 3.5.3 relating to Certificate of good
conduct requirements

This requirement was introduced in Blackburn in the 2016 Policy review
The Statutory Standards also address Overseas convictions in 4.34 and 4.35 below.
‘The DBS cannot access criminal records held overseas, only foreign convictions that are held on

the Police National Computer may, subject to the disclosure rules, be disclosed. Therefore, a DBS
check may not provide a complete picture of an individual’s criminal record where there have been

Page 75



periods living or working overseas; the same applies when an applicant has previously spent an
extended period (three or more continuous months) outside the UK. It should however be noted
that some countries will not provide an ‘Certificate of Good Character’ unless the individual has
been resident for six months or more.

Licensing authorities should seek or require applicants to provide where possible criminal records
information or a ‘Certificate of Good Character’ from overseas in this circumstance to properly
assess risk and support the decision making process. It is the character of the applicant as an
adult that is of particular interest, therefore an extended period outside the UK before the age of 18
may be less relevant. As with all licensing decisions, each case must be considered on its own
merits. For information on applying for overseas criminal record information or ‘Certificates of Good
Character’ please see the Home Office guidance.’

Page 76



09:19 @83 © 0. 23%_
A ndix 3
Me p.pe

If Blackburn Council dont realise bringing the new emmision rule in
for taxi mot's in Blackburn wont have a big impact on the number of
current taxi drivers and how they operate ...

They should do

Drivers having spend £5k - £10k when replacing their car and
E15k ~ £25k when replacing a hackney cab will affect the number of
current Blackburn taxi drivers .

By affect ...

It could reduce the number of drivers by a few hundred who cant
afford to spend that amount on a taxi

Increase the price in taxi fares

Force drivers paying for cars they cant really afford to work 60/70/
80 hours a week

By reducing the number of taxi drivers it will make it harder to book a

taxi in Blackburn

Reduce the profit blackburn council make from taxi mot's and retest's
at davyfield testing station

If you earnt as little as £5 - £6 - £7 an hour before tax and national
insurance, and you dont qualify for holiday or sick pay .

Wouid you pay several thousands of pounds for a car to earn such a
low amount after costs ..?

| dont think so .

£3k - £5k can easily buy u a decent car to pass the current taxi mot
test and drive the public around in and £10k - £1 Sk on a decent
hackney cab to pass the current mot .

Taxi drivers need Help from Blackburn council not Hike

] <
Copy text Share

" el <


Appendix 3


13:39Y ©& QXNQ= ™ | 85%m

Me
13:37, 4 Dec

(No subject)

If Blackburn Council insist the new
ruling for euro 6 and euro 4 mot tests
for newly plated vehicles needs to
come in an it isnt negotiable , only
giving current drivers a few months
notice If they need to change their
vehicles is too short of period . Giving
taxi drivers 2 years notice may give
them more time to save money for

a newer vehicle or find alternative
employment . Phasing out vehicles
plated now that aren't euro 4 or

euro 6 vehicles would need to be
considerably longer than when the
newly plated vehicle deadline comes
in. A5 year notice period should
give drivers who've recently bought
vehicles time to get their moneys
worth out of their cars and also save
up for a new vehicle that will pass the
new proposed emission test on the
taxi mot

] <
Copy text Share

Hi Page 78 <



1359 w3 Q0O " iyl 29% -

Me
13:58, 2 Dec

If Blackburn Council insist
the new ruling for euro

6 and euro 4 mot tests
needs to come in an it isnt
negotiable, only giving
current drivers a few
months notice If they need
to change their vehicles

Is too short of period .
Giving taxi drivers 2 or at
least 1 years notice may
give them more time to
save money for a newer
vehicle or find alternative
employment .

|1 Page 79 <



Appendix 4

4578
PRIVATE HIRE
DRIVERS ASSOCIATION
By Hand
Councillor Jim smith
And

LICENSING TEAM  Blackburn With Darwen Borough Council
Subject: Draft private and hackney policy:

We the undersigned private hire and hackney drivers authorize the private hire drivers
association and hackney drivers association to act on our behalf and represent us in
regards to any taxi trade issues with Blackburn with Darwen borough council and the
licensing team at Blackburn with Darwen borough council.
We hereby also notify Blackburn with Darwen borough council that for now and in
future anything regarding taxi trade; Private hire drivers association and Hackney
drivers association will represent us in the council.
With regards to the current draft policy sent to us via text message, we have our
concerns, we have listed and discussed our concerns with the Private hire drivers
association and Hackney drivers association, there are clauses which are problematic
which we have discussed with the associations and asked them to represent us at the
council.
These clause or points that we do not agree on the draft policy are as listed below:

1: Page 1 0f28 clause 4.3.3 (LIQ403)
2: Page 8 clause 3.5.3
3: Page 9 clause 3.12.3
4: Page 11 clause 4.1.2
5: Page 12 clause 13.3 (L1Q403)
6: Page 16 0f 28 (LIQ403)  Smoking in private hire vehicles fines
7: Page 62 ( Appendix 9) The maximum points that can be imposed in respect to
any particular matter is 10 but it is possible for one incident or inspection to result in
more than one set of points being issued.

We also do not accept the council's decision to keep the MOT station in-house since
the decision has been taken undemocratically without consulting the trade including
all the private hire and hackney drivers.

Thanking you.

Yours Sincerely,

PHDA (Private hire drivers association)

Page 80

l 1of3 |


Appendix 4


4. Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicles
LIQ 403 Page 1 of 28

4.3 Road worthiness

4.3.3 The Council will not issue a vehicle licence for any vehicle that has been written off by insurers
under category A, B or S. A relates to vehicles that must be scrapped ¢ B relates to vehicles that may
be broken and their parts reused * S relates to vehicles that have sustained structural damage that is
repairable. (Not Agreed)

LIQ 403 Page 12 of 28

13. Motoring convictions

13.3 A minor traffic or vehicle related offence is considered to be one which does not involve loss of
life, driving under the influence of drink or drugs, driving whilst using a mobile phone, and has not
resulted in injury to any person or damage to any property, including vehicles. An applicant with 7 or
more points on their DVLA licence for minor traffic or vehicle related offences, will not be granted a
licence until at least 5 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed. (Not Agreed)

Page 9 of 28
3.12 Medical Fitness

3.12.3 Licensed drivers must produce a group 2 medical certificate completed by
a registered medical practitioner on first application, at age 45, then every five
years until age 65 and thereafter annually, unless the driver is also the holder of
a valid PSV or HGV.

For information (Not Agreed)

CONDITIONS ATTACHED TO DRIVERS LICENCES APPENDIX 2
Page160f28  Smoking in private hire vehicles

It is an offence under Section 7 (2) of the Health Act 2006 to smoke inside a
hackney or private hire vehicle. The penalty for this offence is £200. The person
who has control of the smoke free

vehicle, would commit a further offence under Section 8 (4) - allowing smoking
to take place ina smoke free place. The maximum penalty for this offence is
£2,500. (Not Agreed)

Appendix 9
Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Penalty Points Scheme
The maximum number of points that can be imposed in respect of any particular matter is 10, but it is

possible for one incident or inspection to result in more than one set of points being issued. (Not
Agreed)

3.5 Disclosure and Barring Service checks

3.5.3 Any applicant who has spent six continuous months or more overseas within the last 5 years,
will also be required to produce a Certificate of Good Conduct from the relevant Embassy or High
Commission, for each country where they resided. The certificate must have been produced no more
than 3 months before it is presented to the Council. This document must be a certified translation, if the
original Embassy Certificate is not in English. (Not Agreed)

3.12 Medical Fitness

3.12.3 Medical certificates, completed by the driver’s own GP practice, or by one of the Council’s

Page 81

20f3




approved suppliers for medicals as published on the Council’s website, are required on first application
and then every 5 years from age 45 until the age of 65 when they are required annually. (Not Agreed)

4. Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicles
Page 11 of 28

4.1 General
4.1.2 New vehicles being presented for a licence must meet the following minimum emissions
standards. (Not Agreed)

Euro 4 emission limits (petrol) Euro 6 emission limits (diesel) (Not
Agreed)

4. Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicles

4.1.2 New vehicles being presented for a licence must meet the following minimum emissions
standards. Euro 4 emission limits (petrol) Euro 6 emission limits (diesel) (Not Agreed)

Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Penalty Points Scheme

The maximum number of points that can be imposed in respect of any particular matter is 10, but it is
possible for one incident or inspection to result in more than one set of points being issued. (Not
Agreed)

Page 82

30f3




Appendix 5
From: [

Sent: Saturday, December 31, 2022 9:24:11 PM
To: Licensing Team
Subject: Policy change

I am writing this email on behalf of myself and 29 other Blackburn with Darwen taxi drivers.
We strongly oppose this policy as we feel this is not the right thing to be doing to move
forwards with the trade.

We need more drivers that are licensed under Blackburn Council, not more deterrants.
The ideas are great and I hope to end up adopting these policies in the future.

However, things like not letting people sit more than 3 tests will push the slow learners away.
I ask the question that if someone books a test multiple times, surely the council will be
charging each time so what is the issue with this?

The knowledge test should be scrapped altogether as everyone uses their sat nav for
directions and drivers learn on the job.

The safeguarding should remain as passenger safety is paramount.

Bringing the Euro 6 policy will drive up the cost substantially, due to the condition of the
used car market. This is unfair on the driver.

I suggest the council puts their effort into creating an infrastructure for electric vehicles,
things like charging ports should be more visible and this way the drivers can invest in an
electric vehicle which will result in savings and would be beneficial for the climate.

If you need any more information on the drivers who are under this email then get in contact
and I will share the information with the principle licensing officer.

Kind regards

Page 83



Appendix 6
Responses to the consultation emailed directly to Licensing.

22 emails from individual licensed drivers to Licensing, confirming that the PHDA are
authorised to speak on their behalf about the policy review.

From:

Sent: 03 December 2022 20:41
To: Licensing Team

Subject: Taxi review.

Hello,

| have been reading with great interest the discussions about updating taxi policy. My
husband was a taxi driver for 25+ years, | read the points under review out to him and
each one he said "of course" to. | used to use Arcade but the lack of professionalism
caused me to change. | now use Intack and the service is a mix. They are now aware
that | want to go the quickest route, many drivers try to lengthen the fares journey,
stating "you should have said you wanted to go quickest route" Many drivers seem to
have an aversion to traffic lights, they try to miss as many out of a journey as possible.
| use the app to follow how long the driver will be before arriving, practically every
booking the app shows the driver en route for pick up when he is actually still
completing the previous fare. Also the registration number on the app doesn't always
tally with the car that picks me up. How any taxi driver expects to be a trustworthy
driver with 7+ points on their licence is beyond me!!

| wish you luck in completing the review, there are good drivers working for taxi
companies in the town, unfortunately they are in the minority.

Yours

From: [N

Sent: 30 November 2022 07:04
To: Licensing Team
Subject: Opinion

Hi, my name is |} ]I, | have been driving as a taxi driver for over 30
years. | welcome the changes to the Fares. As cost-of-living increases. However, |
object to smoking cars being changed to electric/hybrid as | cannot afford a new car.
The estimated price will be around £25,000 which is way above my budget. These
changes should be bought in 2030 to give drivers an opportunity to save some
money.

Kind regards

I
Page 84



From: NN

Sent: 14 December 2022 10:00
To: Licensing Team
Subject: Taxi policy view

Hi

I’'m a private hire driver and I’'m happy with the council policies since | have been a
private hire driver. | have never had a problem with one MOT station or how the tester
at station check my taxi, if there is something wrong or unsafe with the vehicle it
should be looked at for mine and public safety. That said | do not agree on age limit or
not being able to put in an accident damaged car, that’'s why we have council MOT
testers to test if vehicle are safe! Times are hard prices of good reliable cars which can
be used for private hire have gone up also some drivers don’t want to put decent cars
in taxi as they get ruined or damaged by customers or by stones thrown every week!!
Police do not take any actions and drivers are left with hefty repair bills. As we are in
hard times | believe any policy which involves driver's spending money on new
vehicles will not be feasible this will lead to drivers to leave and fares going up which
will effect public who are already struggling. | am happy with rest of your policies hope
you take in consideration Blackburn is not a city and nightlife trade is almost finished
putting pressure on drivers regarding vehicles will not be fair.

Thanks

From:

Sent: 15 December 2022 00:26
To: Licensing Team

Subject: New change

As a taxi driver | am disagree most of your change thank you

Page 85



Agenda Iltem 5

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND OPERATIONS

ORIGINATING SECTION: PUBLIC PROTECTION SERVICE

REPORT TO : LICENSING COMMITTEE 24 January 2023

TITLE : UPDATE ON THE WORK OF PUBLIC PROTECTION AND ENVIRONMENTAL

HEALTH SERVICE

1. PURPOSE
The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the work of the Council’s Public Protection
and Environmental Health Service (PPS) where there is a connection with businesses and
persons who require a licence from the Council. It also provides an update for members on
national policy changes and proposals affecting licencing work.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That members note the report.

3. KEY ISSUES
3.1 Joint operational work

Licensing and Environmental Health Officers have worked with Lancashire Police and BwD
Children’s Services on Operation Latimer. On 19 December visits were carried out at three
businesses — 2 in Blackburn and 1 in Darwen following concerns around possible child sexual
exploitation (CSE).

During the visits business owners and staff were spoken to and educated about CSE and the
premises were inspected to ensure they were complying with health and safety, licensing and
hygiene requirements.

A 43-year-old man from Blackburn was arrested on suspicion of an Immigration offence.

3.2 Officer revocations

In quarter 3 of 2022/23, 2 drivers have had their hackney/private hire drivers’ licences revoked
by officers for issues which needed immediate action.

3.3 Appeal results

Since the last Licensing Committee 2 appeals against the decision of officers or general
licensing sub-committees to revoke private hire vehicle driver licences have concluded. The
Magistrates Court agreed with the decision made by the Licensing Sub-Committee and
awarded costs against the driver of £1500. This is now subject to a further appeal to the Crown
Court. The appeal against the officer decision was withdrawn with costs awarded of £2844.

3.4 Blackburn with Darwen Taxi Forum meeting
At November’'s meeting of the Taxi Forum the focus was on the consultation on the proposed

amendments to the Council’s Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy. A report on
the outcome of the consultation is on the agenda for the Full Licensing Committee.

1
Page 86


https://www.lancashiretelegraph.co.uk/news/darwen/
https://www.lancashiretelegraph.co.uk/news/business/

3.5 Complaints to Licensing Team

During the period 21 complaints have been made to the Licensing Team — 17 related to
taxi/private hire licensing and 4 were about alcohol or late night hot food licensed premises.

The most common complaints were about verbal abuse/threatening behaviour by licensed
drivers and refusal to take passengers with guide dogs or making additional charges for
carrying passengers using wheelchairs.

Environmental Health have also received 2 complaints about noise and disturbance emanating
from licensed premises.

3.6 Routine work carried out

The following table provides figures on some of the key work carried out from 1 October 2022 to
31 December 2022.

Vehicle licences processed — hackney carriage and private hire
497

Driver licences processed — new and renewal applications
137

Licensing Act licences processed
These are new licences, variations to existing licences and changes to designated 33
premises supervisor

Temporary Event Notices processed

LY
Animal Welfare Licences processed

2
Street trader

2

3.3 National Issues
Licensing Committee Member Resources

The Local Government Association has published a range of resources and handbooks to help
councillors with their role sitting on licensing committees.

The resources include:
1. Licensing committee training videos available in this link:

https://www.local.gov.uk/topics/licences-requlations-and-trading-standards/licensing-
committee-training-videos

In order to effectively administer the licensing system, it is crucial that members are fully trained
before sitting on a committee, and these videos are designed to support that process. These
videos focus on some key areas of licensing: alcohol and entertainment, taxi and private hire
vehicle, and gambling.

2. E-learning: licensing module

https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/leadership-workforce-and-communications/councillor-
development/councillor-e-learning

This series of e-learning modules includes one on Licensing.

2
Page 87


https://www.local.gov.uk/topics/licences-regulations-and-trading-standards/licensing-committee-training-videos
https://www.local.gov.uk/topics/licences-regulations-and-trading-standards/licensing-committee-training-videos
https://www.local.gov.uk/topics/licences-regulations-and-trading-standards/licensing-committee-training-videos
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/leadership-workforce-and-communications/councillor-development/councillor-e-learning
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/leadership-workforce-and-communications/councillor-development/councillor-e-learning
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/leadership-workforce-and-communications/councillor-development/councillor-e-learning

4. RATIONALE

To inform members of the Licensing committee about the key work carried out by staff
working within the Council’s Public Protection and Environmental Health Service where there
is a connection with businesses and people needing a licence from the Council. It also
provides an update on some national licensing issues.

5. POLICY IMPLICATIONS

None.
6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
None

7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None.

8. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
None
9. CONSULTATIONS

None
10 . CONTACT OFFICER

Denise Andrews — Business Compliance and Licensing Manager
Telephone 01254 585585

3
Page 88



Agenda Iltem 6

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 89



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 91



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	4 Outcome of Consultation on Policy Revision
	4 Outcome of Consultation on Policy Revision
	Appendix 1

	4 Outcome of Consultation on Policy Revision
	Appendix 2
	3.9 	Driver Training and Knowledge Test
	3.10	Safeguarding and Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) training
	6.	Private Hire Operators
	6.3	Disclosure and Barring Service Checks



	4 Outcome of Consultation on Policy Revision
	Appendix 3

	4 Outcome of Consultation on Policy Revision
	Appendix 4

	4 Outcome of Consultation on Policy Revision
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 5
	From: Matrix Private Hire  Sent: Saturday, December 31, 2022 9:24:11 PM To: Licensing Team  Subject: Policy change


	4 Outcome of Consultation on Policy Revision
	Appendix 6
	Appendix 6
	Responses to the consultation emailed directly to Licensing.
	22 emails from individual licensed drivers to Licensing, confirming that the PHDA are authorised to speak on their behalf about the policy review.
	From: Junaid Amin
	Sent: 30 November 2022 07:04 To: Licensing Team
	Subject: Opinion


	5 Update on the work of the Public Protection Service
	DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND OPERATIONS
	1. PURPOSE
	2. RECOMMENDATION
	3. KEY ISSUES
	5. POLICY IMPLICATIONS
	6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
	7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
	9. CONSULTATIONS
	10 . CONTACT  OFFICER

	6 Minutes of Licensing Sub Committees
	6 Minutes of Licensing Sub Committees
	GLSC Minutes - 13th December 2022




